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Ihe year In review

This year 80,647 people gave
blood, saving or improving the
lives of 29,128 people.

During the year the commitment of our donors and staff
has enabled us to thrive as an organisation. We are future-
proofing New Zealand Blood Service for the years ahead.

Plasma

Flasma was our catchword again this year. The entire
crganisation worked as a teamn o increase plasma donaticns
to meat demand, while ensuring the quality and safety of

the products we supply. We extended opening hours to

make it easier for people to find time to donate. We revised
the height and weight criteria for plasma donors to allow

us to be more effective with each donation, We made a
strong start streamlining the way we work and making our
facilities more efficient, We opened our North Shore donor
centre for plasmapheresis donations. We reduced the time
whole blood donors have to wait until they can give plasma
from two months to one. And we're seeing the impact. We
increased plasmapheresis collections from 27,670 in 2014 to
around 50,000 this year. The surge in demand for plasma has
recently slowed and we are taking this cpportunity to rebuild
our buffer supply. This will help us to respond quickly to future
changes in demand.

Zika virus hit the headlines and was declared an international
public health emergency in 2016. We responded quickly,
informing our donors and reassuring potential recipients of
blood products in New Zealand. The measures we have in
place provide a high level of protection against becoming
infected with Zika virus as a result of receiving a transfusion.

The Future

We are the only provider of blood products to hospitals in
Mew Zealand, so we have a vital place in our country’s health
sector. It's important that we adapt and keep up with new
technolegies and innovations to ensure we service the health
sactor effactively.

This year we implemented changes in processing to extend
the shelf life of platelets from five days to seven, thereby
reducing expiry levels. Similarly, we increased the shelf life of
fresh washed and cryopreserved red cells, improving safety
for our staff and resulting in a better product for patients.

We invested in the future of New Zealand Blood Service
through our Process Excellence project. To give just a few
examples of the results, we reduced the time donors spend
waiting, cut down on our nurses' paperwork and simplified
the way we order goods.

We continue to invest in new technology. This year we
started a project to roll out an innovative, purposa-built
blood bank software programme to frace blood and blood
products from vein to vein, called eTraceline. This will
modemise what we currently do. We also invested in high
quality testing technaology for our labs.

Celebrating our People

As an organisation we rely on our loyal donors and
committed staff. This year we launched a new donor
maobile app to make saving lives even easier, With the
mabille app, donors can book appointments, track
danations and, importantly, whole blood donors will now
get a message whenever their blood saves someone’s life.

Working with our staff we have revitalised our existing
reward and recognition programme. We will launch “Vital”
in the new financial year, with the mission of making our
colleagues - the lifeblood of the organisation - realise
how valued they are for the life-saving work they do.
Through Vital we will invest in our colleagues’ professional
development, encourage staff to take time to appreciate
each other's hard work and achlevements, and support
our people to be their best, mentally and phyysically.

At the end of this year we said goodbye to two of our
Board members, Raewyn Idoine and David Wright. We
thank them both for their fantastic support of the New
Zealand Blood Sarvice, We are pleased to welcome three
new Board members, Fiona Pirmm, Or Bartum Baker and
Cathryn Lancaster. We look forward to having them on
the team.

This year we want to remind everyone that our donors
and our staff are our lifeblood, that together we are
capable of achieving great things, and we can thrive in
challenging times. Thank you all for your contribution to a
wonderful year.

h Y o

David Chamberlain
Board Chairman

Sam Cliffe
Chief Executive
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The life-saving
journey of blood

Donors make an appointmeant onling at www.nzblood,co.nz,
through our mobile phone app, or by calling 0800 448 325.

Whale blood donors donate at a mobile blood drive or at one
of our nine donor centres. Plasma and platelet donors require
special machines, so these donors donate at one of our eighl
‘apheresis’ donor centres.

In our laboratorias, the whole blood is spun in centrifuges
to separate the red blood cells, platelets and plasma. Cur
scientists test every donation for infectious diseases and
identify the blood type.

Plasma can be made into two fresh blood components -

Fresh Frozen Plasma or Cryoprecipitate. Plasma can also be
mads into blood products. Plasma is sent to CSL Behring in
Australia, where the plasma is processed and separated out to
make up to 13 different life-saving blood products, which are
then sant back to New Zealand.

Blood and blood products are stored until they are neaded.
The shelf life and temperature requirement is different for each
component of blood.

Red blood cells are stored in refrigerators at 6°C for up to 35
days. They are used to treat people with chronic anaemia
caused by problems such as kidney failure and cancer, and for
acute blood loss as a result of trauma or surgery.

Platelets are stored at room temperature for up to seven days.
They are used to control bleeding following cardiac surgery
and trauma, and to treat some blood diseases and cancer,

In Mew Zealand we have 13 different plasma products. Find out
more about the products made from plasma on page 13.

The blood and blood products are transported by courier to
Blood Banks based at hospitals around the country, to be
given to patients who need them.

|

|
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Can | donate”?

If you are 16-65 years old, healthy and fesling weall, and weigh s You lived in the United Kingdom, France or the
over S0kg, you may be able to give bleod. To become a Republic of Ireland for a total of 6 months or more
plasrma donor you will need to already be a bleod donor and batweaen 1980 and 1996, or received a blood
meet additional height and weight criteria. transfusion in ANY of these countries since 1980.
Before booking your appointment, take a look at some of the Eligibility criteria are subject to change. For additional
moest commen reasons why you might not be able to donate: eligibility criteria, visit our website:

s You have a cold, flu, sore threat, cold sere, stomach bug or www.nzblood.co.nz

ary other infection.
+ You have had a tattoo or body piercing in the last & months.
* You have recently visited the dentist.

* Your lifestyle or behaviour puts you at an increased risk of
coming into contact with major blood bome infections such
as HIV or hepatitis C infection.

Who needs
my blood?

Whether you give whole blood, plasma or platelets, your
donation saves and improves the lives of people across
Mew Zealand.

< ey
Children including . Babies & pregnan
cancer —= women*
3% B%
Liver & kidney disease
Q
6% Heart disease
Q
Orthopaedic 8 Jo
{bone) surgery
7% Other surgical
trectments
Q
Other medical condilions '| '| Jo
12%
Accident victims

18*

Cancer patients

2 gufu

* Includes wormen's sungery
(obslatrics and gynaecology)
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Responding
fo Zika

Zika virus made the headiines throughout 2015 and in early
2016 the World Health Organization declared the virus an
international public health emergency. As the provider of bleod
services for New Zealand, our first response to the epidemic
was to ensure the safety of the blood supply.

Our pre-existing safeguards against mosquito-borme viruses
also applied to Zika, ensuring that people who had contracted
or been exposed to the infection overseas would not be able
to donate blood. To keep cur donors informed and reassure
potential recipients of blood products in New Zealand, we
updated our website's news page, our onling travel tool and
gligibility criteria.

All donors are routinely asked to disclose their recent travel
history at each donation, and donors who have visited at-risk
countries are put on hold from donating for 28 days. In the
case of Zika, we also displayed posters in our donor interview
rooms, prompling donors 1o let our nurses know if they might
have been exposed to the virus,

The measures we have in place provide a high level of
protection against becoming infected with Zika virus as a result
of raceiving a transfusion.
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Rosemary
Volunteer ano
former donor

Rosemary first gave whole blood when she was 20. She

has donated in donor centres all around New Zealand and
encouraged her children to give blood oo, Although Rosemary
had to stop donating when she got breast cancer, she is still
able to contribute as a volunteer, coming to the donor centre
once aweek. ‘| love hearing the donors' stories. You get to
know people, especially the plasma donors who come in every
two weeks, I've always been very impressed by New Jealand
Blood Service and I'm happy to help.

Adam

100-time donor

When Adam’s grandfather needed blood transfusions as part
of his cancer treatment, Adam and his dad became aware of
Mew Zealand's need for blood donors and both signed up. A
few years later Adam began donating plasma. With fortnightly
appointments in the diary, Adam is a familiar face at the
Christchurch Donor Centre, where all the nurses know him.
Impressively, at just 25 years old, Adam has already clocked up
100 blood donations. And he has no plans to slow down: ‘I'm
aiming for 200 donations next!”
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Ihanking our
donors:

World Blood
Donor Day 2016

To celebrate World Blood Doner Day 2016 on 14th June
we reached out to say a huge "THANK YOU!" to all of our
blood donaors.

At cur donor centres around the country, in magazines
and newspapers, on the radio and TV, blood donors met,
read about and heard from pecple whose lives had been
saved by a blood donation.

To coincide with World Blood Donor Day we also
launched a new app for iPhone and Android. The app
makes it even easier to find your nearest place to donate,
and to book and rearange your appointments. With

a special new feature, whole blood donors now get a
message whenever their blood saves someone's life. You
can download the MNZ Blood Donor App from the Apple
App Store or Google Play.




Celebrating
our donors

Our donors stretch from Southland to the Far North, from
the age of 16 to 76, from one donation to more than 500,

Marry Kiwi blood donors start giving at school when
they're 16, with nearly 5,000 pupils giving blood at

school mobile blood drives this year. It can be a big step
and first-timers are often a little nervous. But that first
donaticn can become a lifelong habit of contributing to
the community, All of our donors are volurteers, receiving
ne remuneration, Over 3,000 of our hugely committed
donors have continued to donate in their seventies.

MNearly 17,000 donors made their first ever donation this
year, whilst 939 of our donors have now given more than
100 times,

So many of our donars regularly go above and beyond.
Particularly our plasma and platelet heroes, who can
spend up 1o 2 hours on the donor bed, and who come in
as regularly as every month or fortnight.

We recognise the vital contribution our donors make.
More than 29,000 people in Mew Zealand relied on the
blood and blood products our donors gave in 201516,

We work hard to look after our donors, and we ask for
and listen to their feedback on how we can best do

this. Our donors asked us for evening appointments, so
we extended our opening hours. Donors in Auckland
wanted to give plasma on the North Shore, so we began
apheresis at our donor centre thera in December 2015,
We're improving the range of refreshments on offer after

NEW ZEALAND BLOOD SERVICE

Hi Grace,

w0 naw e

donating and looking at ways we can improve and future-
proof our facilities.

9

This year we also broadened the height and weight criteria for

plasma donors, allowing some existing donors to give greater
amaounts and giving others the opportunity to give plasma for

the first time. Incredibly, thess changes have allowed us to
collect an extra eight tonnes of plasma in the past year.

To all of our donars, young and old, first timers and 500th
timers, a huge thank you from everyone at MNew Zealand
Blood Service.
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Liquid golo

Flasma, also Known as ‘liquid gold’ because of its colour, is
the part of blood that carries blood cells around the bady.
The demand for plasma has grown significantly in the past ten
years and it has been an ongeing challenge for New Zealand
Blood Service to increase donations to meet this demand.

The increase has been driven largely by demand for Intragam®
P, which contains a concentrated dose of antibodies that
detect and fight off bacteria and viruses that can make us sick.
Because of this, it is used to treat people with compromised
immune systems, such as after chemotherapy or for primary
immunocdeficiency diseases (of which there are hundreds).

It is alsc used to treat conditions where the body's immune
systern attacks itself, causing severe problems, like Guillain-
Barré Syndrome, a disease where some of the white cells
attack nerves, causing weakness or paralysis. It is even
usad 1o treat conditions we don’t yet know the cause of, like
Kawasaki disease. Some of these ilinesses can require
life-long treatment.

Plasma products are in constant demand with over 80,000
doses given each year. As doctors find more and more uses for
plasma and its products, the demand continues to increase by
rmore than 13%: each year.

Our donors have responded extremely well. In 2006, we
collected 7,000 units of plasma and in 201516 we collected

52,026 units. This demanstrates the dedication and
commitment of a group of people who want 1o make a
positive difference 1o other people’s lives,

Since July 2015 over 930 whole blood donors have
become plasma donors, and the number of active plasma
donors has increased from 1,562 in 2006 to 9,707 in
2016, On average, plasma donors give blood more than
six times a year, but there are some very exceptional
donors who make appointments to donate plasma every
two to four weeks.

All our donors are life-savers and it is with gratitude that
we thank these people for playing such a major role in
saving and improving the lives of fellow New Zealanders.
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Plasma Cryoprecipitate
The liquid part of blcod which contains all of the clotting, Plasma that's been specially treated to produce a concentrated
immune and other proteins, It is a very versatile source dose of clotting factors. It is mostly used for treatment of
of blood proteins for manufacture of speciaiised blood trauma patients and during cardiac and transplant surgery.
compaonents and products.

Fresh Frozen Plasma

Plasma that has been frozen and carefully thawed before
use, Itis used to replace clotiing factors when a patient is
bleeding after major surgery or a serious accident.

You can give plasma every

2 to 3 weeks

90 minutes: B

total appeintment time to give
plasma (approx.)

13 life-saving 8 donor centres

in Mew fealand where you can donate

products made from plasma plasma

Also known as ‘liquid gold’, plasma is the 9, 707
gold coloured liquid part of blood that plasma donors in 201516
carries blood cells around the body

®
0%

&
.' 90% of all our donors are 5 2 3 o 26 units of plasma

plasma donors collected in 201516,
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Plasma product
reciplient

In 2013 wildlife biclogist Sabrina was rushed to hospital,
unable to breathe, and was diagnosed with a rare and chronic
autoimmune disease, The muscles contrelling her breathing
had become so weak that her body couldn't ventilate itself.
Sabrina had to remain in hospital for two weeks. Since then
she has relied on a madicine made from plasma donated

by New Zealand donors called Intragam® P. Importantly for
Sabrina, the monthly treatment allows her to work, raising
awareness around wildlife conservation, and o live a fulfilling
life. She even refers to the infusions as ‘the juice of life’, To all
donors, Sabrina says Thank you, | am etemally grateful”

~ .

To all donors,
thank you, I am

eternally grateful T)
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H OW p | ASMAO In addition to Fresh Frozen Plasma and Cryoprecipitate,
MNew Zealand plasma is used to create 13 other products by
’ CSL Behring at its plasma fractionation plant in Melbourne,
‘ Australia. Where necessary, these may be supplemented by
S O ves I \/e S imported commercial plasma products.

Albumex®4

Can be used fo treat shock due to
blood loss, and in plasma exchange
treatment, where plasma is removed
fram the bleod and a plasma substitute
retumed in its place.

Albumex®20

Given to critically Il patients with a very
low lavel of albumin in the blood, or for
resuscitation in shock due to acute loss
of blood or plasma, in extensive bums,
respiratory distress syndrome, and
occasionally in haemodialysis (blood
purification) and plazma exchange.

Rh(D) Biostate® (Factor VIl
Immunoglobulin-VF and von Willebrand
(Anti-D) Factor)

Given to women after childixirth and
sometimas during pregnancy wheans
the baby's RhD blood type is, or may
be, incompatible with the mother’s
blood type. The antibodies in Anti-D
help prevent an immune response
which could cause complcations in
their baby, and future babies. These
complications vary from jaundice to
sarious anaamia or even death.

Contains factor VIl or von Willebrand factor,
two proteins which are essential for normal
blood clotting. It is used to replace factor
Wil in some people with haemophilia A, and
to provide von Willebrand factor for some
peopls who have low levels or an abnormal
form of this factor. The treatment is used

to prevent bleeding during surgery or aftar
injury.

Prothrombinex™-VF
(Factors II, IX & X)

Uised to prevent bleeding during emargency
surgery and to treat acute bleeding in
patients who use the anti-coagulant
medicine warfarin,

MonoFIX®-VF
(Factor IX)

Lised to treat some people with the
inherited bleeding disorder hasmophilia
B (also known as Christmas disease or
Factor [X deficiancy).

Hyperimmune Infragam® P, Evogam®

Globulins and Privigen®

Provide temporary protection against a Used to treat some immune deficiencies
specific infection, such as chickenpox, by replacing antibodies and providing
tetanus or hepatitis B. protection against many infections.

They are also used to treat patients with
overactive Immune systams causing some
autoimmune disorders.

Thrombotrol

Used before surgery or during pregnancy

and childbirth in patients with an inherited

deficiency of antithrombin [l who might be
at risk of blood clots.

Normal

Immu naglnbulin

Provides antibodies to help protect
pecple agains! hepalitis A, measles
and cther viruses, for example, when
travelling overseas to high risk areas, if
active immunisation is nol possible or
not appropriate.
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Leading the way In
qguality and safety

To keep up with rapidly advancing technology and to continue
improving safety for patients who need blood or bloed
products, we are constantly innowvating our services and
products.

Product innovations

The launch of new products and projacts only happens aftar
months of hard work by our staff behind the scenes. We
test extensively, run pilots and undertake clinical and quality
reviews, We then present our evidence to Medsale - New
Zealand's Medicines and Medical Devices Safety Authority
- wha give us the approval we need to roll aut the projects
across the country.

In late 2015 we rolled out the 7 Day Platelets’ project. We
began individually testing every single platelet component

for bacterial contamination, resulting in a safer product. This
change enabled us to increase the shelf life of platelets from
five to seven days. The extended shelf life has resulted in a
lower expiry rate of platelets, with more of our precious platelet
donations being used by patients.

Similarly, we have extended the shelf life of fresh washed
and cryopreserved red cells. |t's good news for the
patient and clinicians as it allows more flexibility in
scheduling planned transfusions instead of the timing
being dictated by the expiry date of the product. We
deliver products to Blood Banks to order for specific
patients, and the extended shelf life gives us more time to
do this.

This year we also got approval to begin storing
cryopreserved red cells in a mechanical freezer at -80°C,
rathier than in liquid nitrogen at -196°C. This is a safer
method of production for our staff in the laboratory.

The automation of the new process results in a better,
standardised product for patients.

The hard work doesn’t stop there, however, After we get
the go-ahead for this kind of innovation, work begins on
telling people about the changes and how they work. This
includes writing standard procedures and processes,
training our staff, and informing and educating clinical
staff in hospitals throughout New Zealand.
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Investing in the future

One of New Zealand Blood Service's shared values is striving
for excellence’. In 2015 we launched an initiative called 'PEx'
(Process Excellence). PEx is all about creating an environment
where excellance is evarybody's business and where all of
our staff are involved in improvement. In one of the first PEx
projects, in Auckland, we looked at ways of improving our
donors’ experience when they come to give blood, As a
result, we reduced the time donors spend waiting and cut
down on our nurses’ paperwork, alowing them to spend
more time with our donors. In other PEx projects we have
improved the layout of our donor centres, made better use

of office space, and simplified the way we order goods. As
we roll out PEx across New Zealand Blood Service, our staff
and donors will benefit from the improvements in our entire
arganisation’s performance.

19

e
< !I- .J.
T mu_mﬁ;_-_ “

Ancther way we are future-proofing New Zealand Blood
Service is by investing in new technology and equipment.
Over the next year we will replace the software that Blood
Banks use lo trace blood and blood products from vein to
vein. The new system, eTraceling, will give the Blood Banks
fast and easy access to patient information. It will also improve
patient safety by helping to ensure that the right product is
given 1o the right patient,

We are investing in new machines for our laboratories.

The Abbaott Architect machine tests every single blood
donation for diseases such as HIV and hepatitis B and C,
processing around 200 tests per hour, with test results added
automatically 1o the laboratory computer system.

We have also started upgrading the machines we use to
collect stem cell donations to meet best international practice.
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Creating connections

N the health sector

As New Zealand's only provider of blood and blood products,
wa have a critical place in the New Zealand health system. We
strive to create and maintain constructive relationships with
other health providers.

As our funders and the clinical drivers of demand for blood
and blood products, our strategic relationships with District
Health Boards (DHEs) are paramount. Our Transfusion
Medicine Specialist doctors advise hospitals on complex
clinical problems, and our Transfusion Nurse Specialists work
very closely with hospital clinical teams, supporting them to
select the right blood products and services for patients, and
providing education and training in hospitals.

Our role in education extends to training scientists for clinical
labaratories and blood transfusion services of Pacific |sland
countries, through the not-for-profit Pacific Paramedical
Training Centre (PPTC). We have also developed training
modules for scientists in New Zealand's Blood Banks, including
those not directly managed by New Zealand Blood Service.
Our free educational resources for schools are available on our
website and are aligned to the New Zealand Curriculum.

We alzo share knowledge and expertise with blood services
and the health sector globally, This year's winner of the Sir
John Staveley Scholarship, Jonathan Downing, visited the

UK's NHS Blood and Transplant Service, leaming about
next generation matching of bone marrow donors with
recipients, Asuka Burge, National Manager Marketing

& Communications took part in knowledge-sharing
sessions with the Australian Red Cross Blood Service's
marketing team in Melbourme and Sydney. In total nearly
300 of our staff attended one or more professional
conferences this vear.

Given our role in supplying blood products for treatment,
we have built strong relationships with patient groups
and organisations, including the Immune Deficiencies
Foundation of Mew Zealand {(IDFMZ) and Mational
Haemophilia Management Group (NHMG). The NZ Bone
Marrow Donor Registry is based at our Epsom Donor
Centre and works very closaly with our tissue typing
laboratory. The Registry lists around 8,000 potential
donors who are willing to donate cells from their bone
marrow to patients worldwide, if they are found to match
someone in need of a transplant,

Rachel Donegan, Anup Chand and Dhana Gounder
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SiNgeErs ano
donor recrulters

The musical trio Sol3 Mic are known for inspiring crowds with
their powerful and moving operatic voices, and now the Naw
Zealand group is inspiring Kiwis in a different way. Brothers
Pene and Amitai Pati and their cousin Moses Mackay are
encouraging people with Maori and Pacific Island ancestry to
give blood and sign up to the NZ Bone Marrow Donor Registry.

Amital says, "When we found out that Maori and Pacific Island
people were struggling o find donors, we wanted 1o halp.
Being of Pacific Island descent ourselves, we thought we could
be role models for the community. We hope to inspire others
1o give blood and join the Registry.' Moses adds, °| always
thought it would be painful 1o give bone marrow until someons
explained o me that it's just like giving blood. If | can do it, you
can too.

If you are male and your ancestors were Maor, Pacific Island
or any other NZ ethnic mingrity group, talk to one of our
nurses about joining the Registry at your next blood donation
appaintrment.
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Staff snapshot

Total staff

W Forttime

- Casual

. Fieed Tarm

Age distribution

B 45-54ye0ms
B s5-64vears
B 5-3ayeors
' , 35 - 44 years

. 65 years and over
B Under25years

Ethnicity

B Mew Zealand European
B Mot Stated

. Other European
| Southeast Asian/Other Asian

[l Chinese

B ndian

. Mo

W other

B rocific People

[ African / of African orgin

Disability
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84% 12% 4%

B without Disability
[ totstated
B With Disabllity




Average length
of service

542
8 years

Staff attending
conferences

Team fithess
participants

BY

385
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Celepbrating

our starff

COur success as an organisation rests upon our team of 608
colleagues achieving excellence for New Fealanders every day.
Healthy, motivated staff are fundamental to our business of
saving and improving lives, so we're committed to supporting

our people to be the best they can be.

Employee wellness

This year we launched a Team Wellbeing Challenge, maotivating
our colleagues to support each other to achieve their health
and filness goals. 70% of our staff took up the challenge,
wearing pedometers and logging their daily activities,

increasing their daily activity by 20%.

In winter 2016, 354 (58%) staff took up a free flu vaccination,

protecting themselves and their families.

We take the safety of our staff seriously. To coincide with New
Zealand ShakeOut 2015, we reminded our staff of what to do
in the event of an earthquake. In April 2016 we improved our
‘near miss' reporting system and made sure our staff knew
abaut this through posters and Intranet news articles.

Valuing our staff

215 staff attended TRACE, our staff conferance held in
Rotorua, TRACE brought together staff from across the
country for leaming, sharing and netwarking.

We're proud that our staff are loval and committed; this year
our 35 longast-serving members of staff reached a combined

total of more than 1100 years of service.

We celebrated our high-achieving colleagues with awards
and scholarships. Congratulations to Cralg Harris, Jonathan
Downing, Denise Hudson, Kochumal Varghase, Leita Mackay
and the MNational Component Development Laboratory, our

2015716 winners.

We investad in our colleagues’ growth and development,
with 325 staff attending external lzarning and training events
and 23 of our staff selected to attend our internal leadership

programme.

Coming up in 2016/17

Throughout 2015716 a staff focus group worked to revitalise
our existing reward and recognition programme. Vital was
launched in August 2016, with the mission of making our
colleagues, the liteblood of the organisation, feel valued for the
lite-saving work they do. We look forward to reporting back on
the first yvear of Vital in next vear’s report,
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Commencing 1 July 2011 through to 30 June 2019

Statement of Trends - Actual Outcomes and Forward Outlook

ACTUAL DUTCOMES B FORWARD OUTLOOK
KEY INDICATORS TAAZ | AN2AI | 20344 | 20445 | 2HSHE § 20MEAT | 209THE | 2013H%
Year Year Yiear Year Yoar Year Year Yiear
| COLLECTIONS & PRODUCTION VOLUMES
[Donor Population
. Active Donors at 30 June each year 126,041 | 17,987 | 112744 | 108358 | 110,748 | 108,200 | 108400 [ 107300
- Hew Zealand population - stated in 000s 440810 | 444210 | 450850 | 4565580 | 460607 § 4TE2TI| ABITE0 | 488568
- Active doncrs as 8 % of the tobsl papulation 8% 27w| 2so%|  zaowm|  2aeml  2oem| 2miw| 2w
Collection Volumes
. Denation colection velumes 181,822 | 169,527 | 157314 | 164973 | 175138 || 169,850 | 170035 | 174180
- Donar 1o donation ratic - average donation frequency per donor 144 140 1.40 1.51 158 158 160 182
Production Volumes
- Red cells - units 13252 | 1200683 | 110483 | 191,750 | 111365 § 10750 | 107203 | 107268
- Plateints - Bout doses 0357 | 208519 | 19202 1825 | 1T@iT | sesa | 15sm | 161
. Crycpracptate . unts 4832| 4413| 4po7e| s5123| 5572 5430 | 5485 5539
- Plasma - unils wgn | o767 | 15675 | 18367 | 165 | 1ema| te4ve| 1EEm
- Source plasma issued for fractionation manufaciuring - kgs 54308 | 52o41 52 88 59333 | 67152 &5 Bay 56943 65 BES
KEY rﬁur:r & SERVICE DEEIID \."IJLIIIIES
Key Blood Product WVolumes - as issued
Fresh Products
- Totnl red cols - unts 122058 | 114773 | 109653 | 107592 | 106389 | 105045 | 104996 | 105045
- Tetal platelets . acUl doses 15306 | 14535 | 14672| 13904 t1a408f 14208 14452 14ps3
- Crycpreciptate - unis a1o4| 4218| 4753| amoE| 5358 5300 5350 5400
- Tefal clnical FFF plasma - units 200351 17500 14800 16672 | 15725 15859 16,050 16,20
Total Fresh Procuct Unts lesued per 1000 head of population ed| S411| 3168| 46| 20N 2951 7924 4
Fractionated Product
- mmunoglobulin - iNtrages - grams 275,703 | 265,779 | 274636 | 300218 | 285134 § 209400 | 322440 | 345200
. mmunaglobulin - privigen - grams 7o0| 1300 1540| 3eeeel 3ss@| aTe00|  ImAdD
- mmunoglobulin - evogam - grams 93mg| 1w74a| rase| 33zss| 25pesf a4pes| as7o0|  4spes
Total Inmunogicbulin product issues - rams ZH5089 | JTT M| 2A570| WS4 | MEST R IBOMI| 40583 [ 434305
Total Fimvunogicbuin produc [Eeued por 1000 head of POPUISTRN - grams B4G67 | 6243| 6620| 73ar| 1589 T8E3 | B445 326
~ BIELTI [S2U8E - grame 171802 | 211.274 | 235,002 | 251,378 | 230,300 | 236,300 | 239,700 | 240950
- Biostate (Facicr VIT) - 500 equivalert visls gps3| 7aw| 7| assr| e2r 7400 7400 7 400
Key Service Volumes - as supplied
- Patient antibody screens 143307 | 144267 | 144558 | 142572 | 143000 § 135000 | 138500 [ 137000
« Patert blood greugings 147491 | 146382 | 149151 | 147375 | 147791 | 143000 | 142500 | 142000
. Patert compalabity testng 123563 | 114418 | 109302 | 111857 | 111480 ] 108800 | 107800 | 107.000
- Antbady scresns for paierts awaking or gan fransplants Tas| 7oat| 7Em| 83| sasel esio| sse|  esy
- Tigsue typing associated with ransplant patients. / denors. 5525 cH3 5713 6135 6424 £.955 &3 EE26
NZBS PRICING TREHJI.IIE versus CP| BENCHMARK - Based off June 2007 Pesition
- Compound ol groups CFI % movement 1451%] 1529%] 1796%| 1766%| 181 1960%| Z265%] 2539%
. Compound NIES price % mavemant (net ary price rebate paid) eag%| o66%] o59%| Go0%| GaTwl t0TTw| 12eTw| 1519
£ wnd NZES price dffarantisl varsus the compaund GBI indax (ream] )] rarse| reesse| persil momse)]| moess)| riozow)
EARNINGS PERFORMANCE
- Total bicod product revenus ($000s) BE9E2 | 84668 ) S3503 | 89546 | 92065 STAX | 101533 | 106352
- Total services revenue ($000s) 17AM | 178N 19,854 2358 | A Me 20,608 21278 21 858
. Overaeas revenue ($000%) 1862 1315|1583 ers | 1052 g7 | 1287 1,193
- Other revenise (including inlerest earned) (5000s) 523 86 535 e 558 385 406 G606
- ToLl [EVErUeE - pre OHD price febaes (50008) 105,501 | 104,990 | 105,895 | 112555 | 115502 § 119,050 | 124,502 | 130110
- Revenus growth % 315%| osen)| 105%| easm|  27oml  2oow|  asEw| 4s0n
- Full time equivalent employess with vacancy alowance- FTES 450.] 42035 | 4T148 SDBE4 | 51420 161 S513n 23N
- Revenue per Tull time equivalent employes (3000s) AEAT| MAE5 | B M 28| 2480 3087 4264 25407
. Reperted surpius | (defict) befors DHE price rebates (5000s) 3447 | (2a05)| 2864| 8256 | (25 oo | (086 (265}
. Brice rebatles 1o DHBs (3000s) . 2000 | 3550 = ; i
- Reported surphus | (defick) after DHE price rebates ($000s) 3447 | (2108) se4] a70e| s f1040) ] (1.066) (285}
- Total equity WAL 6247 rin 41,87 H‘,-E‘Z Baw R a7 o
- Total non-curmant borrowings ign 4,485 4,150 4 0a8 7075 6,802 6,505 6183
- Total assets syoso| sooez| e15ss| easos| 7m0l Teqdn| Tease| 7smEso
-Warking capial 0297 | 2erem| moaea| oa6sor| asaal wmaso| mama|  amase
- Invertory stock turn (times per annum) 427 EL ) 458 408 a2 agn 402 441
- FRcesvabion - daye Salns oultstanding (days) 3647 | 32| arra| ass3| 3518 20| 2920 2020
DEBT / EQUITY GEARING
- Equty rato % B004%| BoAI%| D994%| 9113%| BAJ6%J G465%| G4ESm|  65.30%,
- Dabt ratio % o06%| 1103%] 1006%| 6erw| 15eanl 1539w] 1515%] 1aErm
CASH FLOWS
- Cash fow derived from operaing aciviies 573 4.180] ©,160] GEO3| (26E f 7.207] 4008 B.728 |
- Investing activities - investments & captal expenditure gam | garo| o coam| sl mees| onm| en
- Financing related activites - barrowing & debt repayment 219) 53| imey|  cme)|  (426) | mn (322}
- Cash movement inthe fnancial year - (00 = cash reduction @5 (2431 45| 2584 | (6ETH) 3 533 2337
. Cash posion al balance date ) 10006| 7s6m| ame| 10508 3o 3858  44m 6528
BANKING COVENANT COMPLIANCE
- Adusied tobs tangile axsets (114) (5000s) TITG0| 53.204| 6367 | 63002 GGE1Z) G4,355] B5,113| 67580 |
- Coloulated bank equity - (TTA minus tolal Babiities) ($000s) 3062 M| MMI WHI| A2TE4 L] 8045 2851
- Bank squity ratic % - reguirement of & minimum 30% of acusted TTA 6284%| sToew| seesw| sezam| dmmrnl sssew| saovs| ez
. Surpius bafors interest, depreciation & DHE price rebates (EBITDA) - (S000s) 68a5| 1968| e©904| 12116| 8260 5005 6565 7807
- Irferest cover ralio - minimum 1 times cover of EBTDA wsr| 1s0| s 479 789 712 932 1185




David Chamberlain
Board Chalrman

David is an actuary at Melville Jessup
Weaver (MJW), with over 25 years'
commercial experience in the financkal
sarvices sector.
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David Wright
Deputy Board Chalrman

David is a Professional Director and
Management Consultant with a career
spanning both the corporate and state
seclors. He is currently Chair of West Coast
Energy Pty Lid and the Air Rescue Group,
and a Director of WEL Networks Limited,
Wellington Water Limited and New Zealand
Registry Limited. David retired from the
Board on 14 June 20186,

Prof Peter Browett

Peter is a Consultant Haematologist at
Auckland City Hospital and Professor

of Molecular Medicine and Pathology
within the Faculty of Medical and Health
Sclances at the University of Auckland,
Peter is currently a Commitlee Member

of the Auckland City Hospital Transfusion
Advisory Committes and a Board Mamber
and Medical Advisor 1o Leukasmia and
Blood Cancer New Zealand. Peter is also a
member of the Auckland Medical Research
Foundation Board and chairs their medical
committee, and is on the Board of the
Cancer Soclety of Mew Zealand Auckland
Division.

Raewyn ldoine

Raewyn is Chair of the Southern Regional
Health and Disability Ethics Committes and
Advisor Marketing and Vocational Strategy
for Lincoln University. Raewyn retired from
the Board on 14 June 2016,

Victoria Kingi

Victoria is the Managing Director of her
own consultancy company specialising
in property asset development working
with Maori land trusts and post Treaty
sattlament antities.

Find out more about our Board Members including our
thraa naw board members for 2016717, Fiona Pimm,

Cathryn Lancaster and Bart Baker at our website:

www, nzblood.co.nz/about-nzbs/nzbs-board-members/

lan Ward

lan is the Chief Executive of the Auckland
Energy Consumear Trust, the major
sharehokder of Vector Group Limited, He is
a government appointed Board member of
the Auckland District Health Board (ADHE)
where he chairs the Audil, Finance and
Risk Committee, a committee member of
tha Board's Human Resources Committea
and a member of the Hospilal Advisory
Committee. He has been on the Board of
ADHE since 2007 as an alected person and
as a government appointea. lanis also a
director of C-4 Consulting Limited.
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NVeet the Executive

Management leam

Sam Cliffe
chief Executive Officer

As the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Sam leads the Executive
Team and is accountable to the NZBS Board. She has overall
responsibility for organisational performance including delivery

of both its Annual and Strategic Plans.

John Harrison
Chief Financial Officer

John leads the NZBS Finance function with responsibility for

all finance related activities as well as the management of
procurement related activities.

|
AL
il
Dr Peter Flnncgnn
National Medical Director
Peter leads the NZBS Clinical Services team which plays
a key role in ensuring that clinically appropriate blood

and blood products are provided to patients in need,
wherever and whanever they are required.

Sue Jensen
National Manager Human Resources

The Mational Manager HR is responsible for providing
strategic human resource leadership ensuring palicies,
programs and HR services support a high performing
culture supportive of the enduring cutcome, vision and
values of NZBS.
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Christine Van Tilburg Ray Scott

Natlonal Manager Operations Natlonal Manager Technlcal Services

Christine leads the Operations function which provides all The Technical Services function which Ray leads, is
routing business activities for NZBS sites in the collection, responsible for the technical oversight of the processing,
manufacturing, testing and distribution of more than testing and supply of blood components to meet clinical
175,000 blood donations which are dispensed through requirements in hospitals throughout New Zealand.

NZBS or DHB Blood Banks arcund New Zealand.

Meredith Smith Olive Utiera

National Manager Quality and Regulatory Systems National Manager Donor Services

The NZBS Quality and Regulatory function is responsible The Donor Services function which Olive leads, is responsible
for implementing the quality systems required for far the strategic oversight of recruiting and retaining new and
regulatory compliance in the manufacturing and existing donors and performing all blood collection activities.

diagnostic areas.
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Structure and
governance

NZBS is a Crown entity established in 1998 under the
Mew Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000,

Its legislated primary purpose and core activity is the safe,
timely, high quality and efficient provision of blood, blood
products and services to clinicians for the people of New
Zealand. In addition to this, NZBS provides services for
matching of patients and donors prior to organ/tissue
transplantation, tissue banking (skin and bone) and stem cell
senvices, These activities, which are provided free of charge
to all people of New Zealand, contribute to achieverment of the
organisation's single Enduring Outcome:

Health needs of people in
New Zealand are supported by
the availability of safe and
appropriate blood and tissue
products and related services.

MNZBS is required under the Crown Entities Act 2004 {the
Act) to give effect to Government policy as directed by the
responsible Minister, the Minister of Health, The NZBS Board
is appointed by and responsible to the Minister of Health

and performs strategic and governance functions for the
organisation in accordance with the Act. The collective duties
of the Board under the Act include ensuring that NZBS acts
consistently with its objectives, functions, Staterment of Intent
and Annual Staternent of Performance Expectations: performs
its functions efficiently, effectively and consistently with the
spirit of service to the public; and operates in a financially
responsible manner,

Board members who have a range of appropriate and
complementary skills and experience to govern this complex
collections, manufacturing and distribution organisation also
have individual duties to: comply with the Act (including with
respect to disclosure of information); act with honesty and
integrity; act in good faith and not at the expense of NZBS's
interests; and act with reasonable care, diligence and skill. The
MNZBS Board appoints the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) who
reports directly to them. An Executive Management Team {see
page 22) supports the CEQ.

The NZBS Board ensured that the organisational activities
supported NZBS to achieve the following seven strategic
goals for the 201516 year:

NZBS builds on core capabilities to provide a range of
products and services which are appropriate to New
Zealand health needs and priorities.

NZBS achieves the highest possible Safety and
Quality standards in all that it does.

NZBS manages a sustainable donor population
capable of supporting ongoing product demand in
Mew Zealand,

NZBS's relationships with other health sector entities
are mutually supportive and productive,

MNZBS has a sustainable, competent and engaged
workforce.

MZBS uses international best practices and internal
Ressarch & Development capabilities to improve and
develop products and services for the Mew Zealand
health and disability sector.

NZEBS iz a financially sustainable organisation
operating effectively and efficiently.
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Our vision

As the provider of blood services for Mew Zealand, the

Mew Zealand Blood Service will be recognised for excellence
in meeting the needs of donors, patients, its staff and the wider
healthcare community.

Our values

Safety is our cornerstone

Ko te haumaru 14 ma tau matapono taketake

Striving for excellence
Kia tau kite Tihi

Team work
Te Mahi Mgétahi

Integrity & respect

Te Fono me Te Tika

Open communication
Te Whakawhitiwhiti Whakaaro | runga | t& Maharahara

Our enduring
oufcome

Health needs of people in New Zealand are supported by the
availability of safe and appropriate blood and tissue products
and related services. As the provider of blood services for
New Zealand, the New Zealand Blood Service will be
recognised for excellence in mesting the neeads of donors,
patients, its staff and the wider healthcare community.
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For the year ended 30 June 2016

New Zealand Blood Service m
Stﬂt“tﬂl’]’ Disclosures
Te Ratonga Tolo O Actearca

Youwr Board Members take pleasure in presenting their Annueal Report including the Financial Statements of the Mew Zealand Blood
Senvce for the year ended 30 June 2016, The presented Annual Report is also published on the New Zealand Blood Sendce
wirbsile - www nzblood.co.nz,

Principal Activity
The New Zealand Blood Senice (NZBS) was established in 1998 to ensure the supply of safe blood and blood products
to the New Zealand health sector and has responsibility for all aspects of the transfusion process in New Zealand; fom the collection
of blood from solunteer donors 1o the transfusion of blood components and products Lo recipients; a ' veln to vein * transfusion sendce,

Financial Performance
The Board of the New Zealand Blood Sendce sets financial targets for the entity at the beginning of the 201516 financial year and continuously
maonitors actual performance against these targets during the course of the year, The 201516 year delivered a weaker level of growth at 2.0%
compared with last year's above average growth of 5.0% which had been fuelled by strong immunoglobulin product demand, in particular. Adjusting
to variable demand pattems is an ever present challenge for NZBS. The Board has been pleased with the NZBS response throwghout 201516,

MZBS is reporting a defcil of 532.34m for the 201516 Gnancial year. Al the operational level NZBS performed well delivening a small
cperational eamings surplus of 3468k which was 5804k favourable to budget. However the reporied result has been adwersely impacted by
reporting compliance requirements under intemational financial reporting standards that totalled $2.8m in non-cash charges, of which 52.1m
related to ' mavk fo marke! " unrealised foreign exchange losses, the consequnce of a strong NZD as against the AUD at balance date.

Key financial perormance indicators for the 2015/16 financial year are sel oul below,

2018118 201516
Financial Performance Indicators Actual Budget
_Total Revenue pre DHE Price Rebates($000s) _ e B nssaz| 112,280 | 112,555
E e ey (136)
Dﬂclara-:l Price Rebate to District Health Boards ($000s) = = ] ) i
| Tolal Expenses ($000s) N 17937 | 112314 | 104,298 |
red Surplus | (Doficil) (3000s) _[2.345) (15}

limes EBITDA {minimurm 1 times) * ! ! ;
Banking Ratio - Bank defined Equity to Total Tangible Assets (minimum 30%) 49.92% 57.47% 58.23% |

* Mote: the reduction in interest cover and the increase in Debt % ratio is a consequence of NZBS electing o recognise certain operating leases
as finance leases from the 2015/16 financial year onwards.

Auditor

Audit New Zealand on behalf of the Auditor-General is appointed in accordance with Sections 14 and 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001

and Section 156 of the Crown Entities Act 2004, Remuneration of the auditor was as follows:

ac | 30 June 2016 | 30 June 2015
dsldammaLﬂt ||||||||||rrrrrrl:'|'|l'|l'|||||||||||||||||-|-||-|

| R o e e i e e iy

= 104.000
Board Members
All Board Members ane appointed by the Crown.

Remuneration of Board Members
The following Board Members held office during the period under review and were paid fees accordingly:

“Board Members' Remuneration | Date of Original Appointment | 30 June 2016 | 30 June 2015
Danid Chamberlain (Chairman)

DrEarI Eakar e
Ms Cathr'_fn Lamaslar
Ms Fiona Pimm

[
't
.
K
[m

M Do Wrigh ACmis Dputy Chairman) Retired 14 June 2016 ...l J9Mitd 20000
Ratied 18 e 28 LA 16,000
|Trutal Board Hembers’ remuneralinn 116,711 116,000

Board Members' Interests - Related Party Transactions
NZBS cperates an Interest Register under a continuwous disclosure regime with the Register reviewed at every Board meeting. NZBS has threa
Board Members with a relationship 1o organisations thal NZBS transacls business with, The Board has assessed these potential related pary

transactions under the new International Public Sector Accounting Slandards (IPSAS) and concluded the ransactions do nol salisfy Lhe ‘control’
requirement as defined in those Standards, consequently disclosure is not required.
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New Zealand Blood Service
Statutory Disclosures
For the year ended 30 June 2016

a Te Ratonga Toto O Acleooa
Board Members' Interests

Mo Board Member of the entity has received or become entitled to receive a benafil other than a benefit included in
the total remuneration received or due and receivable by Board Members shown in Remuneration of Board Membars.

Statement of Use of Entity Information
There ware no notices from Board Members of the entity requesting to use entity information received in their capacity as
Board Members which would not otherwise have been available to them.

Directions issued by Ministers
The Mew Zealand Blood Service receved no NZBS specific ministenal directives in the 201516 financial year. NZBS has one whole of government
direction under 5107 of the Crown Entities Act 2004 being the mandatary compliance with Procureament Rules of Sourcing, These rules
suppon best practice government procurement and came into effact on 1 Febmuary 2015,

Donations
Donations were made by the enfity during the year ended 30 June 2016 totalling $2 402, (2015 Nil).

Insurance
The Mew Zealand Blood Service camies insurance cover to protect Board Membars and its employees from lagal iability
arising from the camying out of their duties. NZBS has provided Board Members with a Dead of Indemnity when acting in
pursuance of the functions of the organisation. The issuing of Deeds of Indemnity has been recorded in each Board Member's

Interasts Register.

Employee Remuneration Range

Employes Remuneration range 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
No. Employees | No. Employess
$100,000 - 109,999 12 12
$110,000 - 119,535 T 7
SN {1 P Eo— - TH
$130 000 - 133 3593 5 3
$140,000 - 149,559 - 1
$160,000 - 169 399 1 ]
$170,000 - 179 999 -

e 00000 18999 L L . ;e
$130 000 - 133 393 1 4
$200.000 - 209,959 3 -
$210,000 - 213,393 1 1
$220000 - 729559 i

e 20000 - 20309 P E T .
§.240,000 - 243 553 . 2
$250,000 - 259,359 1 1

BiEaRE $360 000 - 269,399 2
$280,000 - 383 559 1

SO -1 E L I N— L
$310,000 - 319 3539 = =
$320,000 - 329,999 - 1

B . $300000-333399 1 :
$3b0.000 - 353 533 * - 1 * Chiel Exscutive Officer

46 40

Employes renumeration includes the following elements; base salary, cash allowances, bonuses and incenlive paymants,
non-monetary benefits, any Fringe Benefit tax paid on any element of the remuneration package and any termination, severance
or end of contract payments,

Termination Payments
During the year ended 30 June 2016 no termination payments were made. (2015:564 035).

David Chamberlain lan Ward
Board Chairman Board Deputy Chairman
26 August 2016 26 August 2016
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New Zealand Blood Service

Statement Of Comprehensive Revenue And Expense

For The Year Ended 30 June 2016

d Ta Ratonga Toto O Aclearca

Note

Revenue

Revenue from supplying blood products

Revenue from supplying semces

Revenue from overseas sales 2
Interast income

Other income 2

Less price rebate to District Health Boards
Total revenue

Expenditure

Cost of consumables and changes in inventory

Employee benefit expense

Depreciation and amortisation 13
Other expenses

Finance costs

Revaluation of derivative financial instruments

Total expenses

Surplus / (deficit) for the period
Other comprehensive revenue and expense
Total other comprehensive revenue and expense

Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the period

Actual Budget Actual
2016 2016 2015

92 064 775 839,473 802 B3 945 808
21 317 535 21,288 363 21154 470
1052130 340 573 675273
430 363 583,154 0B 754

66 831 6,500 70,350
115,592,294 112,299,004 112,554,635
- - (3 550,000}
115,592,294 112,299,004 109,004,655
41 674 627 39,276,134 35,434 963
42 046 435 41835 699 39,562,013
3,730 350 3,938 500 3569529
27 520,966 27 008 508 26,321,174
734 837 255,163 289 895
2129932 - (879,287)
117,937,147 112,314,004 104,298,299
2,344 853) (15,000) 4,706,356
{2,344 853) (15,000) 4,706,356

Explanations of significant variances against budget are detailed in Note 34.
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New Zealand Blood Service

Statement Of Financial Position sz
AS At 3“ June zn 1 ﬁ Te Ratonga Tolo O Aclsaroa

Note Actual Budget Actual
2016 2016 2015

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents A 3533 2 607 126 10,598 406
Trade and other receivables 9 12 287 553 12,456 041 12511 142
Investrents 10 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000
Inventories 1 31,085 304 24 B16 278 24 366 533
Dernvative financial instruments 12 - 1@.'2[]4 583 623
Total current assets 55,262,168 47,773,649 56,059,770
MNon-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 13 10,342 568 7327 509 7842120
Intangible assets 14 6.718 048 6521113 4 604,415
Total non-current assets 17,067,616 14,448,622 12,446,535
Total assets 72,329,784 62,222,211 __ 68,506,305
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 13,423 981 10 880 387 13,018 421
Premises reinstatement provision 16 84 061 - 61,076
Employes benefit entitlements 17 5739723 4792 405 583861
Dervative financial instruments 12 530 857 - -
Borrowings 13 240 583 86 850 149 764
Total current liabilities 20,019,217 15,759,642 19,067,872
MNon-current liabilities
Derivative financial instrumants 12 1.015 452 - -
Premises reinstatement provision 16 2,001 471 1115870 1,538,106
Employes benefit entitlements 17 1608213 1678.100 1558 552
Rent accrued 18 1,138,292 1153389 455 317
Borowings 13 7,074,766 3,982 400 4 069,232
Total non-current liabilities 12,838,194 7,929,759 7.621,207
Total liabilities 32,857 41 23,689 401 26,689,079
Net assets 39,472,373 38,532,870 41,817,226
Equity 20
Crown equity 15,716 636 15,716 696 15,716 696
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense 20,755 677 22816174 23,100,530
Advarsae fractionation event rasanve 3,000 000 - 3,000 000
Total equity 39,472,373 38,532,870 41,817,226

For and on behalf of the Board Members of the New Zealand Blood Semice

(D d : G2 Adapd

David Chamberlain lan Ward
Board Chairman Board Deputy Chairman
26 August 2016 26 August 2016

The accompanying notes form part of these financial stalements |
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New Zealand Blood Service
Statement Of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended 30 June 2016

MTg Ratonga Toto O Astearca

Opening balance

Transfer from accumulated comprehensive reserve and expense to
adverse fractionation event reserve

Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year ended 30 June

Adverse fractionation event reserve
Contribution from owners

Closing balance

Note Actual Budget Actual
2016 2016 2015

41,817 226 38 547 870 37 110870

- (3.000,000)

(2344 B53) {15,000 4,706 356

+ . 3,000,000

20 39,472,373 38,532,870 41,817,226

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from blood products and senvices revenue
Intarast racemvad

Receipts from other revenue

Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers

Distribution of price rebate to District Health Boards

Intarest paid

Capital charge payments

Met GST receved from/(paid to) IRD
Mel cash from operaling activities

Cash flows from irrv esting activities
Interest received
Acquistion of investments - term deposits

Recaipts from maturity of investments - term deposits
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and aquipment
Net cash Trom ivesting activities

Cash flows from Tinancing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - finance lease
Repayment of borrowings - finance lease
Repayment of equity

Net cash from financing activities

Net (decrease) | increase in cash, cash equivalents and

bank overdraft

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdraft at the
beginning of the year

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdraft at the end of

the year

Note

21

Actual Budget Actual
2016 2016 2015
115 2658 329 111 455 411 111 503 037
163 344 201,154 327 371
40,210 78,000 14812
(42,011,161) (42 096 563) (38 835 820)
(66 BBE 255) (64 201 335) (&1,600,052)
(3,550,000 {2,500,000) (2,000,000)
(697 £36) (215.163) (291,162}
(3,362 600) (3.082 747) (3.236 400)
63856 (50.327) (79.065)
[@68,313) [A11,570) 5,802,121
350,054 388 000 334 608
(12,000,000 {12,000,000) {12,000 000)
12,000 00d 12 000,000 12,000,000
13832 . 51 408
(3,296 .705) (2.729,000) (182 .512)
382 079 [2.441.900) (3,146 287)
(5,284,898) {4,782,900) (2,942,783)
(425 Ba4) (80,450 (275 B1T)
(425,884) {80,450) [275,617)
(6,679,095) (5,274,920) 2,584,321
10 598 406 7.782 046 014,085
3,919,311 2,507,126 10,598,406

The GST (net) component of operating activities reflects the net GST paid to and received from the Inland Revenue Department.

The GST (net) component has been presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information
for financial statement purposes and to be consistent with the presentation basis of the other primary financial statements.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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(3)

Statement Of Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

The Mew Zealand Blood Senice (MZBS) is an appointed entity pursuant to section 63 of the Human Tissue Act 2008, primarily
rasponsible for the peformance of functions in relation to blood and controlled human substances in New Zealand.

MIBS is a Crown antity under the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000, and. more spacifically, a Statutary Entity
under the Crown Enfrties Act 2004, NIBS's ultimate parent is the New Zaaland Crown.

MIBS is a public benefit entity as its pimary objective is to support the Mew Zealand healthcars community

through managing the collaction, processing and supply of bleod, controlled human substances and related sanvices.
Accordingly, MZBS has designated itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for the purpases of applying the

Public Benefit Entities Accounting Standards (PBE Standards). issued by the External Reporting Board (XRE].

The financial statements for NZBS are for the year ended 30 June 2016, and were appraved by the Board on 25 August 2016.

Basis Of Preparation

Tha financial stataments of NZBS have been prepared in accerdance with the requiraments of the Crown
Entities Act 2004 and the Mew Zealand Public Health and Disabality Act 2000.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Mew Zealand generally acceptad
accounting practice (MZ GAAF), in accordance with Tier 1 PBE Standards. They comply with FBE Standards,
as appropriate for PEEs.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all perods presanied in these
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exceplion of certain tems identified in
specific accounting policies.

The financial statements are prasented in New Zealand dollars. The functional curency of NZBS is New Zealand dollars.

Standards And Interpretations lssuad And Not Y et Adopted
In 2015, the Extemal Reporting Board issued Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PBE IPSAS 1), 2015 Omnibus Amendmants to FBE
Standards and Authortative Nofice as a Consequence of ¥XRB A1 and Cther Amendments. These amendments apply to PBEs with

reporting periods baginning on or after 1 January 2016. MNIBS will apply these amendments in prepaning its 30 June 2017 financial statements.
MIBS expects there will ba no effect in applying these amendments.

In 2016, the External Reporting Board issued Donated Goods (Armendments to PBE IPSAS 23). These amendments apply to PBEs with
reporting periods baginning on or after 1 January 2016. MIBS will apply these amendments in praparing its 30 June 2017 financial statements.
MIBS expects there will be no effect in applying these amendments.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue
Revanue is measured at the fair value of consideration receaived or raceivable.

Tha specific accounting policies for significant revenue itams are explained balow:

Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the time the nsk and effective awnership transfers to the customer

Provision of services
Revenue from the rendening of senices is recognised as the services are provided.

Price rebate to District Health Boards

WIBS also considars annually in accordance with its financial guidelines policy, price rebates to District Health Boards
which, if elected by the Board to be paid, are recognised at the point of decision and deducted from the amount of revenue
recaived of recevabla.

interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effectve interest method.

Capital charge
The capital charge is recognised as an expansa in the financial year to which the charge relates
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Leases

Finance leases

Afinance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownarship of an asset, whethar or not title is eventually transfemad.

Al the commencement of the lease term, NZBS recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position at the lower of the fair value of the leased tem or the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The amount recognised as an asset is depraciated over its useful life. If thera is no certainty as to whether
MNIBS will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depraciated over the shorer of
the lease tam or s useful ife

Operating leases

An operating lease is a lease that doas not transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to
ownarship of an asset. Lease payments under an operating lease are recogmised as an expanse on a
siraight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shart-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within barrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and olher raceivables are initially measured at fair value and subsaquently measurad al amonised cost using
the effectree interest mathod, less any provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there s objactive evidence that NZBS will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of recevables

Inventories

Inventories are measured af cost upon intial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through non-axchanga
fransactions (i.e, donated goods) for no cost or for a nominal cost, the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of
acquisition. However, as NZBS is not legally permitted to purchase blood from the public, the accounting fair value of

blood from donors is considered nil, Therefora the cost of imventories comprise all costs of collection, costs of convarsion, and
any other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory
is determingd using the FIFO or weighted average methods. The valuation includes allowance for slow moving items.
Obsolate imventories are wiitten off.

The write-down from cost to net realisable value is recognised in the surplus or deficit except for fractionated denved
products manufactured from New Zealand sourced plasma (refer below),

Inventories are recognised as an expanse when deployed for utilisation or consumption in the ordinary course of NZBS
operation

Fractionated derived products manuf actured from a prindpal plosmao pool

Fractionated denved products are manufactured into finished blood products by a third party manufacturer on a “toll® manufactunng

basis using MZIBS provided source plasma. Fractionated derved products in the main are manufactured from either 7.8 or 10.4 tonne plasma
pools and the NZBS rolling manufacturing plan generally allows for 6 production paols in a financial year. The driver product group within the
manufacturing process is the immunoglobulin product represented by Intragam P and Evogam product.

The principal pool wark in progress (WIF) is included at full standard cost, as the final output that the manfacturer must produce is locked in via the
agreed prodection plan for a pool and contract yields per the toll manufacturing agreement. This high level of certainty enables the WIP to be viewad
in the same light as finished fractionation product for the purposes of inventory valuation.

Waluation of fractionated derived products from these plasma poals, both finished goods and WP, is based on allocating the actual input cost
of manfacturing a plasma pool (NZBS source plasma input plus third party toll fractionation manufacturing fee) fo prorated finished\WIP product output
using actual product plasma yield, reparted by the manufaciurer

Post this product cost allacation, if there are any products where cost exceeds the net realisable value, then that cost excess is reallocated to
the driver product group,
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Financial assets

MZBS classifies its financial assets within the scope of PBE IPSAS 28 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

inta the following four categones: (1) financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, (2) loans and receivables,

(3) held-to maturity Investments or (4) available for sale financial assets. The classification depands on the purpese for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of s imvestments at indtial recognition and re-evaluales this designation

at every reporting date.

Financial assels and liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are camied at
fair valua through surplus or deficit in which case thay are initially measured at Tair valug and the transaction costs are recognised
in the surplus or deficit

Purchases and sales of invesiments are racognised on trade date, the date on which NZBS commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the nights to receive cash flaws from the financial assets
have expired or have been transfemed and MZBS has transfemed substantially all the risks and rewards of
cwnership.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on queded market prices at the balance date.
The quoted market price used is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are net traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniquas.
MWIBS uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are basad on market conditions existing at each
balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term debd instruments
held. Ciher techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to datammine fair valua for tha remaining
financial instrumeants,

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification. The four categaries of financial assets are:

Category (1) Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for frading, and those designated at fair value through
surplus or deficit at inception. A financial asset is classfied in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
salling in the shor term or if 50 designated by management.

Demvatrves are also categonsed as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if they are either hald for trading or are expacted to be realised within 12 months
of the balance date.

After initial recognition they are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses on re-measurement are racognisad
in the surplus or defictt

Category () Loans and receivables
These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market

After initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the affective inferest method, less impaiment,
Gains and losses when the assat 15 impaired or derecognised are recognised in the surplus or deficit, Loans and
receivables are classified as “trade and other recewvables” in the staterment of financial pesition.

Category (3) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity iwesiments are assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed malumties that NZBS has the
positive infertion and ability to hold to matunty. After initial recognition they are measured at amonised cost using the
effactive interest method, less impairment. Gains or losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised
in surplus or deficit. Currently, NZES dees not hold any financial assets in this category.

Category (4] Available for sale financial assets

MNon-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classifiad as either category (1) financial assets
at fair value through surplus or deficit, category (2) loans and receivables or catagory (3) held to maturity irvestmants. This
encompasses demvatnes that are designated hedges, After inttial recogniion these invesiments are measured at thair fair value.

If impairment evidence exists for derivatives that are designated hedges at fair valua through other comprehensive revenue
and expense, the cumulative loss recognised in other comprehenswe revenue or expense is reclassified from equity to
the surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets
At aach balance date NZBS assesses whathar thare is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. Any impairment losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit
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Financial liabilities

MIBS classifies its financial liabilities within the scope of PBE IPSAS 29 Anandal instrurments: Recognition and Measurement
as either financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings at amorised cost,

The classification of financial habildies are determined on initial recognition.

All financial habilties are racognised inftially at fair value, and in the case of loans and barowings, plus directly atinbutable
transaction costs.

MNZBS's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Faoreign currency translation

Foreign curency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates pravailing

at the dates of the transactions. Transactions denominated in foreign currency are reportad at the reporting date

by applying the exchange rate on that date. Foreign exchange gaing and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions are recognisad in the surplus or deficit.

Accounting Tor derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

MNIBS5 uses dervative financial insiruments to manage exposure to foreign exchange nsks

arizing from operational actmifies. In accordance with its treasury management policy, NZBS does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. MZBS has not adopted hadge accounting.

Darvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is emered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each balance date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in the surplus or deficit.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment consists of operational assets which include plant and equipment, computer
hardware, motor vehicles, fumifure and fittings / office equipment and leasehold improvemants,

Propery, plant and equipment is shown at cost less accumulated depraciation and impairment lossas

Additions

The cost of an item of propery, plant and equipment is recognised as an assel f, and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits or senice potential associated with the item will flow to NZBS and the cost of
the ftem can be measured reliably

Propery, plant and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Where an asseat is acquired at no cast, or for
a nominal cost, i is recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition,

‘Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.

Disposals
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the camying amount of the
asset. Gains and losses on disposals are includad in the surplus or deficit,

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing or improving part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of an item. The costs of day-lo-day semvicing of propary. plant and equipment are recognised
as incurred in the surplus or deficit

Depreciation

Depraciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all preperty, plant and equipment, at rates thal will
write off the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values over thair useful Ines.

The useful lives of major classes of assets have bean estimated as follows:

Computer equipment 3to5 years

Fumiture and fittings 5 to 10 years

Metor vehicles 3to 4 years

Plant and equipmant 5 1o 10 yaars

Leaseheld imprevements Shorter of term of lease or useful e

The residual value and useful fe of an asset is reviewed, and adpsted if applicable, at each financial year end.
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Intangible Assets
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expensa whan incurred,

Amortisation

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amorised on a straight-line basis over its useful
[ife. Amaodisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date that the asset is
derecognised. The amonisation charge for each penod is recognised in the surplus or daficit.

The useful Ines of major classes of intangible assets have been estimated as follows:

Computar software 3 years
Compufer software - blood management system (eProgesa) 10 years

Changas in the expected useful life or the expected pattem of consumption are treatad as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with a finite useful life are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Impairment of nonfinancial assets
MZBS does not hold any cash-generating assets. Assets are considered cash-generating whare their primary objective
is to generate a commercial return,

Non-cash-genarating assets

Froperty, plant, and equipment and intangible assets held at cost that have a finite useful life are raviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nol be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount.
The recoverable senice amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Walue in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated replacement cost approach, rastoration cost approach,
or a senice units approach. The most appropriate approach used to measura valua in use dapends on the nature of the impaiment
and availability of information.

If an asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable senice amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the carying amount is
written-down to the recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficil.

The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit

Creditors and other payables
Creditors and other payables are stated at cost.

Employee benefits

Shortterm benefits

Employee benefits that NZBS expects to be settled within 12 menths of balance date are measured at
nominal values based on accrued antitlements a1 current rates of pay. These include salaries and wages
accrued up to balance date, annual leave eamed to, but not yet taken at balance date, retiring and long senice
leave entitlements expected to be settled within 12 months, and sick leave.

MEZBS recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year are expectad fo be
graater than the sick leave entitiements eamad in the coming year. The amount is calculated based on the
unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, 1o the extent that NZBS
anticipates it will be used by staff 1o cover those future absences.

MZBS racognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where comractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Leng-term benefits

Long service leave and retirement leave

Entitlements that are payable bayond 12 months, such as long samnvice leave and refirement gratuities, have
baen calculated on an actuarial basis. The calculations are based on:

+ likaly future entitlemants accruing to stafl, based on years of service years to entitlament, the
likelihood that staff will reach the point of entitlemant and confractual entdlements information; and

= the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate is based on the weighted average of
Governmant interest rates for stock with terms 1o maturity similar to those of the relevant liabilities. The
inflation factor is based on the expected long-term increase in remuneration for employeas
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Superannuation schemes

Defined contribution schemes

Obligations for contributions to defined confnbution superannuation schemes are racognisad as an expanse
in the surplus or deficit.

Defined benefit schames
NIBS belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Schemae (the scheme), which is managed by the
Board of Trustees of the National Provident Fund, The scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme,

Insufficient information is available to use defined benefit accounting, as it is not possible to determing from
the terms of the schame, the extent to which the surplus/deficit will affect future comnbutions by indmidual
employers, as there is no prescribed basis for allocation. The scheme is therefore accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme. Further information on this scheme is disclosed in note 23 - Contingencies.

Provisions

MZBS recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present
obligation (either legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that expendiiures will be
requirad to sefle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligaticn,

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required fo setile the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time, value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognisad as an intarast expanse.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value. After initial recegnition, all borowings are measured at
amortised cost using the effecive interest mathod

Bomowings are classified as cument liabilities unless MZBS has an uncondiional right to dafer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after balance date.

Adverse fractionation event reserve and matching investment fund

NZBS collects source plasma and contracts a third pary to manufacture that source plasma, via a complex series of
processes known as fractionation, to produce a range of derived fractionation products far use within the New Zzaland
health secter. The manufactuning confract clearly defines the party's respactive nisks and responsibilities inclusive

of financial nsk attribution should certain of those risks inherent in the manufacturing process actually accur. NIBS
attnbuted financial risks have, based on historical perfformance, been classified as being of low frequency but with a
petentially high financial impact if an event did oceur.

Accordingly NZBS has elected to mitigate this manufacturing financial risk with the establishment of the advarse
fracticnation avent policy that mandates the establishment of an adverse fractionation evant reserve within the aquity
section of the statement of financial position that is complemented by a malching term deposit fund to ansure access
to liquidity in the event of an adverse event occurring

Under this policy NZBS is required to assess, on an annual basis, the upper level of potential financial nsk, the cument
level of the reserve and whether further funds should be transferred to the reserve with matching Bquidity also required
to then be sat aside.

Equity
Equity is the Crown's interest in NZBS.
The components of equity are:
= Crown egquity - Crown equity is the net asset and hiability position at the time NZBS was established plus any subsequent
equity injections.
« Accumulaled comprehensive revenue and expense - is the accumulated surplus/defict since NZBS establishment.
« Adverse frachionalion event reserve - is the transfer from accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense commencing
financial year ending 30 June 2015, The reserve has been establishad to mitigate the financial manufactunng nisk associated
with the production of fractionated derived products.
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Goods and services tax (GST)
All tems in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, which
are stated on & GST inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as input tax then it is recognised as part
of the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recaverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revanue Depanment (IRD) is included as
part of receivablas or payables in the statement of financial position. The net GST paid to, or received from
the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as an operating cash
flow in the statement of cash flows,

Commitrnents and contingencies are disclosed axclusive of GST.

Taxation
WIBS is a statutory entity under the New Zealand Public Health and Disability Act 2000 and is exempt from
income tax under Section CW38 of the Income Tax Act 2007,

Budget figures

The budget figuras are those approved by the Board of NZES at the beginning of the year as prasented in tha Annual Stafement
of Perfarmance Expectalions. The budget figures have been preparad in accordance with NZ GAAP and comply with NZ GAAP,
using accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Board for the preparation of the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

In prapanng these financial statements NZBS has made estimates and assumplions conceming tha future. These
estimales and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual resulis. Estimales and assumptions are continually
evaluated and are based on histonical expenence and other factors, including expactations or future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where this is the case the basis of those assumplions are detailed
in the relevant accounting policy

Critical judgements in applying the NZBS accounting policies

In prapanng these financial statements NZBS management has made judgernants in applying the NZBS accounting policies,
These judgements have been applied consistently to all penods presented in these financial statements. There ara no
material judgemants that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustmant fo the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that need disclosing.

Changes In accounting policy
Thera have been no changes in Accounting Policy.
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2 Revenue from overseas sales and other revenue
30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Rewvenus from overseas sales - exchange revenua 1024 355 663,750
Revenua from overseas sales - nor-exchange revenue IS 11533
Total revenue from overseas sales 1,052,130 675,273

The non-exchangs revenus from overseas sales relates to sponsorship of conferences by overseas domiciled suppliers.

(ither revenue - exchange revenue 30882 14812
Other revenus - non-gxchangs revenua *0H 5554
Tatal other revenue £5,891 70,350

The non-exchangs Other revenue’ relates masly to donated products and sendces covering grocenes, venua hire for whole blood donations, advertising and conference / course
fees.

3 Costof consumables and changes in inventary 30 June 2016 30 Jupe 2015
Consumables * 253014 19,937 B54
Changes in invartory = 16,006 074 12,356 763
Expired product ** 3138339 254054
Total cost of consumables and changes in inventory 41674 621 35,434,569

* Gonsumables - the cost of consumables for the period ending 30 Jue 2016 at $22,530 214 was 52 532 555 higher than the June 2015 cost of 13,337 553. This was mainly
driven by higher collection volumes nesded to meet increased fractionated product demand and higher Tisswe Typing costs relating to tests performed an the Lumingx platform (a
combination of higher test volumes and higher costs per consumable kit used).

** Changes in inverdory - is an aggregated reporting figure comprising ‘cost of goods sold, production recovenss and inventory valuation adjustments’ consistent with the
application of manufacturing standard costing methedclogies and generally accepted inventory valuation principles. Changes in inventory for the period ending 30 June 2016 at
$16,006 074 was $3,049,305 higher than the June 2015 cost of §12.956 769 and was primarily dus to higher demand for fractionated products plus the change in accounting
estimate relating to fhe valuation of fractionated derved products (refer bebow) offset by stronger production recoveries driving from the higher collection volumes fo meet
fractionated product demand.

Changes in imventory for the period ending 30 June 206 includes the impact of the change in accounting estimate refatling to the valuation of fractionated derived products, The
change in accounting estimate reflects the NRV (net realisable valus) realocation of fractionated products manufactured from NIBS source plasma being apphed to the full year
production of drver product volumes (Intragam P and Evogam) a5 opposed, in past years, to using the driver product year end closing stock quartities for the reallocation. This
change has been made as i is seen as a more appropnate basis for the business qoing forward. The impact of this changa is a lower product cost and represents a §3.4 milion
difference as a consequence of the change being expensed in the June 26 year (refer nots 1),

**= Expired product - to guarantes the supply of product for any situstion NZBS must maintain levels of stocks in excess of nomal usage. Though NIBS carefully manages its
inveniory of products fo minimise expiry, dug to the shor life of the fresh products in particular, there will be a certain amount of product that will expire before i can be utilised.
The higher cost of expiry in the 2016 year was due to a combanation of higher fractionated product expiry (actual expiry and a higher obsolescence prowsion) and fresh product
expiry, in particutar red cells.

4 Employee benefit expenses 30 June 216 30 June 2015
Salaries and wages 41096 433 38027 33
Dfined contribution plan emphoyer contibutions 559,163 901 308
Increasaf(Decreass) in employes benefit liabilites [49.221) 633 409
Total employee benefil expenses 12096 435 19,562 015

Emgloyea benefit expenses at 30 June 2016 totalled $42 146 435 and was $2 484 416 higher compared to the June 2015 year of $39.562 019, The increase ks mainly due to the
impact of stronger demand from District Health Boards for the supply of fractionated product, resulting in 2 higher number of s1aff needing o be employed fo meet collaction and
production requirements in the June J016 financial year,
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Other expenses 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Faes 10 pincipal auddon
Audit feas for financial statement audit 2016 106,170 .
Audit feas for financial statement audit 2015 - 0. 000
Audit feas for other sarices . -
Capital charge * 3,362 E0D 3236 400
Board mambers’ fess LRE-FRL 116,000
Wel foreign exchangs losses / (gains) = 54, 242 550 387
[Gaing) [ losses on disposal of propery, plant and aguipmsent {13833 63,233
Additions 1o premises reinstaternent previgion (note 16) - 402 B5T
Changes in premises reinstalemeant provision [note 16) 438 028 126 467
Changes in impairment of receiables {note 3) - (2. 488)
Impasrment of irdangdle assets (note 14) 404 311 -
Minimuem lease payments under operalng leages ™ 4733 831 4,752 482
Cther operaling expenses |
Distnbution 1.964 325 1778473
General administration ncluding msurance cosls 1433659 1388518
IT systems and tebecommunscation 5 056 432 4 49 B30
Markating 2004 276 2083 070
Rapairs and mainfanance 2130832 2215 49
All othar operaling axpanses 5 .6§3.362 AAT4EIT
Total other oparating axpenses 18,408 BSE 16,322 810
Total other axpanses 27 520,966 26,321,174

* The Mew Zezaland Blood Senice pays a capital charge to the Crown twice @ year. The first paymant is based on its actual closing equity from the prior June financial yaar and
the second payment is based on the actual chosing equity from the current year December gix manthly resull. The capital charge rate for the period ended 30 June 2016 was B%
(30 June 2015 B%).

** Met foreign exchange losses / (gains) reflect foreign exchange losses [ {gains) excluding the impact of the revaluation of dervative financial mstruments (refes note 7).
== Minimum lease payments in June 2016 totalling $4.733 B81 were $18 501 lower when compared 1o the June 2015 spend of §4 752 482, The June 2B payments include the

impact of reclassifing threo leases recorded as eperating leases in prior financial years, to finance leases in the 2016 financial year (refer nate 13). The mmpact of the reclassified
ontrias from the 2015 financial year and earlior flowing info the 2016 financial year are defaited below:

30 June 2016
Rewersal of minimum |ease payments under operating leases
Intarast on lean (note 6) 213,715
Dwpeaciation on propary, plam and equipment (note 13) 212435
Netimpact expensed to comprehensive revenus and expense
Finance costs 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Intarest on bank borrowings 124 433 181 B1T
Interest on Diworth Trust finance leases 51528 a0
Interest on Mgdi Tahu Propery Limitad finance lease 335085 -
Interest on other propery, plant and equipmen finance leases BE 441 -
Prowigions: discounl umwind (note 1E) 48 322 56 458
Intarast othae 18612 -
Total finance costs T34, 837 289 895

Mo borrowing costs were capitalised during the pariod (2015: nif).

Intarest on the Ng3i Tahu Propery Limited finance lease reflects the specialist fit-cut component relating 1o the Lester Lane, Chrisichurch facilty, which was reclassified in the
2018 financial year from an operating lease to a finance lease. M includes interest of $157 B32 relating o the 2015 financial year (refer note 5).

Intarest on other proparty, plant and equipment finance leases includes interest relating to two leases reclassified in the 26 financial year from cparating leases to finance
loasas. Intarest of $55 B33 relating to prior financial years as a result of the reclassification ks included in the June 2016 year expanss (refer nots 5).

Revaluation of derivative financial instruments 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Foreign exchanga foeward seling contracts - (gain) f loss 2139332 (873 287)
Total revaluation of darivative financial instrumants - (gain) / loss 2,129,933 ET9,287)

The revaluation of dervative inancial instruments gainiloss) reflects the movemant batwsen the opening and closing balance data positions of dervative financial instruments as
shown in the statemant of financial posttion.

Cash and cash squivalents 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Cash in hard 4 B00 4,750
Cash at bank 391481 10 593 F56
Short term deposit . -

Total cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the stalement of cash flows 3,919,311 10,598,406

Cash at bank is deposited with countarparties with Standards & Poor's cradit rating of A&- or batter. The camying value of cash at bank, cash on hand and shor-tem daposits
with maturities less than thres months from the dale of acquisition approximates their fair value.
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Trade and other receivables 30 June 2006 30 June A5
Trade recenables 10807 096 11,185 430
Sundry recemables 145 363 33681

10,353 053 11,219,171
Less: prosesion for impairmant of receivables - -
Net receivables 10,953,059 11,219,111
Prepayments 1,248 324 1.1477 367
Interest recenable accrued - tem deposits B5 170 114 605
Tatal trade and other recebvables 12,287 553 12,511,142
Trade and other recenables from non-exchangs transactions ralste to sponscrship of a NZBS annual conference.
The camying walug of recaivables approxemates their fair valus.
As at 30 June 2016 and 2015 all everdue recenvablas have been assessad for impaimment and appropriate provisions applied, as detaded below:

16 2015

Receivables ageing Gross Impairment Mot Gross Impairment Mot
Current 10,808 273 10808 273 11,167 963 11,167 388
Past cus -
31 - B0 days 143140 143,121 43577 49677
61 - 30 days B3| &3 2148 2,148
> 90 days 2238 - e ] B4 (B42)
Total racanables 10,953,059 10,953,059 11,219,171 11,213,171

All receivables greater than 30 days in age are considered to be past due.

The provision for impairment has baen calculated Based on expected non-payment of long cutstanding or disputed iswoices. Expected losses have been determined based en an

analysis of NIBS's bosses in previous pericds, and review of specilic deblors

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

Balance al beginning of period

Additional provisions made dunng the year (nole 5)
‘Winte-back of surplus provision dunng the pencd {note 5)
Recaivables wrtten off dunng the penod

Balance at end of period

Investments

Current portion

Term depoats

Adverse fractionation event reserve term deposits
Total current pertion

Non-current portion

Term depoats

Adverse fractionation event reserve term deposits

Tetal nen-current portion
Tatal investments

30 June 2016 30 June 215
2458

(2.458)

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
5,000 000 5,000,000

3,000,000 3000000
8,000,004 8,000,000
8,000,000 8,000,000

Temn deposits af 30 June 2016 have matwrities ranging batwean eight and nina months from the date of acquisition. Tenm deposits af 30 Juna 2015 had maturities of eight
months from the date of acquisition. The camying amounts of term deposits with matueities less than 12 months approximate their fair value.

The adverse fractionation event tern deposits is an investment portfolio established in the financiad year ended 30 June 2015 to match the adverse fractionatian evend resenve

balance (refer nete 20).

The adverse fractionation event term deposits at 30 Jume 2016 and 2015 have maturities of eight months fram the date of acquisition. The camying amounts of term depasits with

maturilies less tham 12 months approximate their fair value.
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11 Inventories

Raw matenals - fresh frozen plasma

‘Woek in process - fractionaled componants
Fractionated componants

Fresh compenents

Consumables

Prowigion for expired imeentory

Total Inventories

Mo irventories are pledged as securty for liabilties nor are any irventonies subject fo retention of title clauses,

Ho NIBS inventory is camied &t fair value [ess cost to seil

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
2591 B30 1638 457
7703156 B.443 530

16,471 094 9852 253
2420201 2248 050
2425283 2545 518

31,611,564 24,793 868

{556 2560} (427 263}
(556, 260) HET 265)
31,005,704 74,366,509

The cost of inventories recognised as an expensa during the year totalled §16,006 074 and includes a 53,438 360 expensa dua to the change in accounting estimate ralating fo

the vabuation of fractionated derived products,

HZES efiminatad the use of an MRV provision relating to fractionated derived products in the 2010111 financial year. From June 2011 onwards, valuation of fractionated derived

products from plasma pools, both finished goods and WIF, has been based on allocating ihe actual ingut cost of manufacturing a plasma pool (MZBS sowce plasma input plus:
third party tofl fractionation manufacturing fee) to prorated finished\WIF product cutput wsing actual product plasma yield, reported by the manufacturer,
Post this product cost allocation, if there are any products where cost exceeds a product’s net realisable value then that NRY cost excess is reallocated to the driver product
group based on that driver group's closing stock levels. NZBS defines the diver group as compnsing Intragam P and Evogam products.
The change in accounting estimate reflacts the NRY reallocation being appled to the full year production diver product volumes as opposed to the use of the driver product year
end closing stock quantities. The impact of this change is detailed below.

[NRV realocation] nAY reallocation | EXpensed to
using driver using full year comprehensing
product year end S e Incomme
closing stocks P :
product volumes
Fractionated componants brought-In 4,704 085 4,704,085 2
Fractionatad components derved including work in progress 21303125 15,470,165 3438 360
Total fractionaied components including work in progress 27513210 24,174,250 (3,438 960)
12 Derivative financial instruments 3 June 2016 30 June 2015
Fenward foreign exchange contracts
Cument lisbilities porien 530 857
T liakakties portion 1,015 452
1,546,309
Forward foreign exchange coniracts
Curent assets porticn B83623
Tarm as5els porion
583,623

The fair values of forsard foreign exchange contracts have been detarmined wsing a discounted cash flow valuation lachnique based on quoled market prices ruling ab balance
date. The inputs into the valuation model are from independently sourced market parameters such as currency rates. Most market parameters are implied from dervative financial

instrument prices,

13 Property, plant and equipment

1 July 2014 Leasehald Pt and Compinter Furniture and Wotor oitice Total

Cosl of vahsation im nis equipment equipment fittings wehiches equipment

(Opening balance 11,804 535 21,771 461 5854 253 1,503,710 21 513 172,062 41,327 551

it @ B55) 2431 785 ETER w1 T4 3340 44 B3 330838
Disposais (2 B43.758) (2 37 243) (111,116} .27 {38 567) (32.198) (5.554 365)
30 Jure 75 8,951,143 21,765,797 6,117,563 1,787 227 216 AT 184,437 39,082,614

1 July 215 Leasehold Pant and Computer Furniture and lotor Office Total

Cosl of vahsation improvements equipment equipment Tittings wahiches wuEpmEt

(Opening balance 8951143 21 765 797 6117 563 1787 227 276 447 184 437 39082614

Falddtions 3203103 1,383 069 863,235 11 532 Fal-ro 12234 550031

s 3000) (337 7B (2557 442} RT3 (31.301) 2230 [3516.329)
30 Jure TG 12,151,246) 22,251,084 A4 AT3416 1,795,786 246,173 194,501 41,068,206
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The lgasehald improvements sddition of 53 203,103 af 30 June 2016 includes 52 851 373 relating to the specialist fit-oul component at the Lester Lane, Cheisichurch facility,
which was reclassified in the 2016 financial year from an operating lease to finance lease (refer note 13).

The plant and equipment addition of §1 383 063 at 30 June 2016 ncludes 5308 247 relating 1o two leases reclassified in the 2016 financial year from cperating leases 1o finance

leases [refer note 19).

The leasshold improvemnants addition of negatie $3 655 at 30 June 2015 redlects the reallocation of the June 2014 closing capital work in progress to plant and equipment in the

Jura 2015 year.

The leasehold improvements disposals of $2 843 738 at 30 June 2015 mainly relates to the vacated Chistchurch Blood Centre pramises situated a1 Riccaon Road. NZBS

relocated in Movember 2014 to 3 new purpose-built facility at Laster Lane, Christchurch (refar note 18],

The plant and aquipment disposals of §2 437 443 at 30 June 2015 relate mainly to a combination of retired assets from the vacated Christchurch Blood Cenire stuated at
Riccarten Road plus assets identified as no bonges in use, NZBS established a roling physical asset validation programme in the June 2015 financial year aimed a1 providing

assurance all recorded physical assets remain in productive use.

1 July 2014 Leasehold Pant and Computer Fusmiture and Batar [T Todal
Accumidated depreciation and improvements equipment equipment fittings wehickes equipment

impadment losses _ _ _ . . = N
Cpening balance 10,040 356 17723306 4 540 354 397 446 113 463 161733 3 BA0 514
Depreciton 5102565 1547 420 552 424 131 785 3% 11513 2834331
EarTen inses -

Dsposais {2821 947} 2 320 .0m0| (111.11B) (30 441) (33 587 [32.138) (54684 353)
30 June 2015 7,789,274 16,887 256 5282 292 1,058,750 101,822 141,060 31240 4%
1 July 215 Leasehold Mant and Compuler Furnifuse and Wotar Office Tolal
Accumulated depreciation and Improvements equipsent equipment Tittings rehickes equipment

imparment losses

Dpening balance FEF-Fil] 16 BET 256 5282 1,038,790 101 g2 141,060 31,240 494
Deprecinion 532548 1660016 EE3 551 138318 3059 17,343 2353473
gt s

Dispasals 3.000) [T (2557 443) 2373 &1.301) (2.230) (3515 329)
(30 June 2016 1,258,022 17,649,490 3,278,000 1,794,735 0,512 156,179 30,718,638

The leasehald improvernents depreciation of $532 543 at 30 June 2016 includes depreciation totalling $158 410 relating to the speciakist fé-ou campanent at the Laster Lane,
Chnstchurch faciity, which was reclassified in the 2016 financial year from an oparating lease to a finance lease (refer note B). The depreciation of $153 410 is a combination of
cument financial year (5595 045) and 2015 financial year depreciation (353 364),

The plant and equipment depreciation of 1,660 016 at 30 June 2016 includes $205 B51 relating 1o two leases reclassified in the 2016 financial year from cperating leases 1o
fimance lzases (reler note 6). The depraciation of $205 651 is a combination of cument financial year (§56 580 and 2015 and prior financial year depraciation (§143071).

Carrying amounts

1 30 Juna and 1 July 2015 1221 g6 T R R 74 5% TEELH T 542,100
A1 30 Juna 2016 3892324 A G01 594 REL 507 151 165 Bb1 30322 10,349 56
Capital work in progress

[A130 June and 1 July 2015 . 524 2% 249,148 57 470 xS 1132672
|1 30 June 2015 a76 215608 553,400 779 384

Preperty, plant and equipment additions include 3779 584 of capital work in progress projects 3 30 June 2ME (2015 $1.132 B72). There are no restrictions or pledges aver

property, plant and equipment.

The net camying amount of assets held under fnance leases is §3,.403 053 2015 $315 423) for leasehold impeovernents, §143 622 (2015: $223 A70) for femiture and fittings and
$411 582 for plant and equipment (2015: nil)l. The increase in the net camying amount under finance leases for leasehold improvements reflacts the reclassdication of the
specialist fit-out at the Lester Lame, Chaistchurch facility (refer note 13).
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14 Intangible assets
Computer software cost
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals

Balance at end of year

Accumulated amorisation expense and impairment losses

30 June 2016 30 June 2015

9,346 637 9,776,325
3254 821 22,163

(261 428) [51.851)
12,540,030 5,946,637

30 June 2016 3 June 2015

Balance at beginning of year 5342 222 4 608 242
Amorisation expanss 736 877 735,130
Impairment lxsses 404 311 .
Disposals 261 425 (1,210}
Balance at end of year 6221982 5,342,222
Carrying amounts

At beginning of year 4504 415 5.168 083
Al year end G718 048 4504 415

There are ne restrictions over the title of the NZBS infangible assals, nor are any intangible assets pledged as securdy for liabilites.

The remaining amorisation period on computer softwara ranges from bass than 1 year to 3 years with the exception of the blood management system (aProgesa) which is &

years,

Irtangible asset additions include 53 003 157 of capital work in progress propects at 30 June 2016 (2015; $106 535). The majosity of the 2016 capftal woek in progross relates 1o

the eTraceline blood bank software implamentation project which is dus to go-Fve in Apeil 2017,

Irnpairment lesses of $404.311 in the year 30 June 2016 (2015 nil) relates to the assessed proportion of functionality that will become redundant within the existing blood

managemeant system aFrogesa whan the new aTraceline bleod bank software goas lve in April ZM7 (refer note 22).

15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Accrued axponses

Capital charge accrued

Beard membess’ fees payable
Taxes payable - PAYE and FBT
Taxes payable - GST

Crthar

Total trade and other payables

30 June 2016 3 June 2015

90028074 542957
2770265 6015550
3378 5,000
855 708 754 530
583311 519455
183 245 294 363
13,423,981 13018421

Trade and other payables are non-interest beaning and are noemally settled on 30 day terms, therefore the camying value of trade and cther payables approximates their fair value.

16 Premises reinstatement provision

Balance as at 1 July

Additions [note 5)

Changes in provisions made during the year {nota 5)
Discourt urmwind (note B)

Total premises reinstatement provision
Comprising:

Currani
Men-cumant

Total premises reinstatement provision

30 June 2016 3 June 2015

1593 182 1013370
- 402 B5T

438 028 126 487
48322 56 458
2083538 1,559,182
B4 061 B1.076
2,001 471 1538106
2,085,532 1,533,182

The premises reinstalement provision represents the present value of management's best astimate of the future sacifice of economic benafits that will be required 1o remave
leasehold imp ris from leasehold properly and reinstate those properses on the expery of the lease. The estimated cosl (using the premises ot 71 Great South Road,
Mewmarket, Auckland as the indicator) has been calculated on a cost per square medre rate for reinstatemant based on the adwce received from an independant registersd

valuer

The provision addition in June 2015 of $402 B5T reflects the reinstaternent obBaation contained in the lease of the new Chrisichurch Blood Centre thal opened 10 November 2014,

The unexpired tarm of tha leases concemed ranges frem 1 year to 28 years. The New Zealand Blood Senvice leases premises from District Heakth Boards and commercial
landlords. Leases which expare within 1 year for commercial tenancies are classified as current Babilities, District Haalth Board tenancies expiring within 1 year are classified as

non-cusrand on the basis that the leases will be renewed givan the essential nature of the sensce parformed wathin those locations.
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Employee benefit entittements

Accrugd salaries and wages

Annual lase

Long serdce leave

Ratiremant gratuities

Sick lear

Total employes benefit entitlements

Comprisimg:

Current
MNor-eunmenl

Total employee benefil entilements

H June 2016 3 June 2015
1023 381 1,700 405
4,155 965 3p02 T

571 587 865 277
1 065 006 1,100,044

131,003 17T
7,347,942 7,397,163
STHTA 5% AN
1 608 213 1 554 562
7,347 342 7,397,163

Liabilities for retirament grafuitios and long senice leave al 30 June 2016 have been calculated by an extemal actuary resulting in an increasa in the estimated Eabilities existing

at balance date, compared to the pesition reported 3t 30 June 2015

The discount rates used by the extemal actuary to calculate the estimated lisbilties existing at balance date are as follows: long senice leave 2 42% (2015 3.37%). retiement

leave 2.80% (2015: 3.74%), and an inflation factor of 2.5% [015: 3%).

18 Rent accrued

Rent accrued

Taotal rent accrued

3 June 2016 3 June 2015
1,138,292 455317
1,130,292 455,317

In Dacember 2012, NZBS entered into an agresment to construct and lease with Ngdi Tahu Property Limited, for a new puspase-buill facility at Lester Lana, Cheistchurch, fo be
occupied by NZBS upon complation by way of lease to accommedate all of the NZBS operations in Christchurch. 10 Movember 2014 was the operational date of this new facility.

NIES has determinad the laass of the neaw facility st Lester Lane, Christchurch to be pradominately an opesating lease. The speciakist fit-out component relating 1o the facility
has bean classified in the 2016 financial year as a finance lease (refer note 13). Under the leasing arangement, the initial fixed taem of the lease is 30 years, with two further
nrights of renewal of 12 years each. The agreed lzase paymant per annum is adjusted evary 3 years in lina with the graater of the Consumer Price Indax (CPI) or 8 minimum

increasa of 2.5% at compound rate. At the end of 15 years from the commancement of the leass, there is a futher market remt review undertaken.

The minimum annual increase of 2.5% compound has been included in the minimum cperating lease payment expense recognised in the suplus or deficit. On a straight-line
basis this has besn determined to be $682 375 per annum. In the first 15 years of the |ease the actual rent payable per annum will be less than the straight-lined amount of

sxpense recognised in the surplus or deficit, creating an accrued rent liabilty. By year 15 the actual amount of rent payable per annum will exceed the strasght-lined amount
charged 1o the surplus or defics, effectvaly reversing the accrued rent liabilty over the ramaining 15 year period of the indial lease term

Any adetional increase in the CP which excesds the minimum amount of 2.5% increase will be charged to the surplus or deficil as contingent rent expensa in the penod

incurmed.

19 Borrowings 0 June 2016 0 June 2015
Currant borrowings are represenied by:
Finance laase 240 563 143 64
Term cradit Tacility - -
Taotal current portion 240,589 149,764
Mon-current borrawings are represented by:
Financi lease 3,774,768 763232
Tem cradi Tacility 3,300 000 3300000
Tatal non-cument partion 7074766 A.069.232
Tatal borrowings 7,315,955 1,218,996

Camying amaunt Falr value
30 June 2016 | 30 June 2015 30 June 2006 [ 30 June 2015 |

[Total barrowings 7,315,355 4,218,596 9421816 | 4,218,599 |

In the 2016 financial year the New Zealand Blood Senvica reclassified thren leases recorded as operating leases in prior financial years to finance leases. The leases related to
tha spacialist fi-out componant of the purpose-buill facility &t Laster Lane, Chrstchurch plus two plant and equipmant leases. The comespanding assels riating 1o these finance
leases is recorded within each class of propary. plant and equipmant [refar note 13).  An ovardew of the reclass#fication entres relating to bormowings is summarnised as follows:

Borrowing at | Repayments to 30 | Borrowing at 1 July
COMMENCEMEn June 2015 2016
- _ tof lease
Leasehold improvemants - Laster Lana facility , Chistchurch - Ngdi Tahu Prepery Limited 2,851,378 (15, 458) 2,835,681
Plant and equipmant - two leases 308,247 (132,257) 175,950
Total finance leases previously recorded as operating leases 3,159,626 [147,755] 3,&11‘!.2"
Fam alue

Due to interest rafes on debt resetting fo the markel rate every three months, the camying amount of the term credit facility approximates the fair valus.

The fair value of finance leases in 2016 has been determined using contractual cash flows discounted using a rate based on the NZBS market bomowing rate at balance date of

333%

Tha fair valug of finance leases in 2015 was assessed a8 baing aquivalent o camying value.




48 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
— |

New Zealand Blood Service
Notes To And Forming Part Of The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 30 June 2016 Tor Ratanga Toto © Aohearos
30 June M16 30 June 2015
Maturity analysis:

The fellowing i= a maturity analysis of the HZBS finance lease component of bamowings:
Tolal minsmum lease payments payakls

Lass than one yaae 559 664 211 5
Later than ena year but rot mora than five years 2348 402 TO7 78T
Later than fve years 5343738 B3 115
Tolal minemum lease payments B EET BT 1,202 553
Futurg finance charges [ B4Z 518) {283 597)
Fresant valua of minimum laase paymants 4015 355 918 336
Frasent valua of minimum laase paymants payable

Lass than one yaar 240 553 143 764
Later than cne year bul mol more than fve yoars 1015 438 O s
Later than fwe years 20759 68 B2 21T
Total p value of mini lease payment 4,015,355 918,99

The fellowing is a maturity analysis of the HZBS tlerm credit Tacility:

Less than one yead . -
Later than ene year bul mot more than Tee years 3,300 000 3,300,000
Later than fwve years . -

Total term credit facllity 3,300,000 3,300,000

Total barmowings 7315355 1,218,99%

Weighted sverage effective interest rate for the Westpac term credit facilty is 3.77% (2015: 4.59%). the onginal Dilworth Trust Board [an was repaid in full in the 2016 financial
year (2015 T.0%), the Didworeth Trust Board laan negotiated in the 201272013 financial year 7.5%, the Mgl Tahu Propesty Limited baan relating to the specialist fit-oul componen
recognised in 2016 financial year 8.375% (2015 nil) and the finance lzases relaling to plant and equipment range from 7.59% to 9.24% (2015 nil).

Finance leases are classified a8 current for the balance repayable within 12 monthe and non-current for the remaining batance for both the 2046 and 2015 years. In 2016 and
2015 the Westpac borrowing is classified as non-curent liabiities as the balance repayabde is grealer than 12 months.

Tha original Ditworth Trust Beard borrowing relates to the finance leasa element within the property lease for 71 Great South Road, Mewmarkat, Auckland. Tha lassor funded
52.6 million of the spacialist fi-out costs. This bomowing was rapaid in full by Seplember 2015,

Thie Weslpac Mew Zesland Limstad bormowing is unsecured and oparales via a nagalive pladge undartaking. The maximum amount wvailable 1o Mew Jealand Blood Seedce under
this bomowing aerangamant is 58,300,000 of which 55,300 000 is a cemmitted funding lina with the balance uncommitizd funding. all on a term facility (2015: 58,300 000).

The specific requiremants of the negatve pledge e stated balow,

(a) The Mew Zealand Blood Serdce must not grant a security inferest over more than 5% of it's adjusted tangible assets (defined as tofal assels loss imfangble assets) to any
third party withous the pres consent of Wistpac New Zealand Limited.

(b) The Mew Zealand Blood Service will ensure that @ maintaine shaseholder funds of not less than 30% of adjusied tangibde assets (defined as total assets bess inangible
FLEEIE

(¢} The Mew Zealand Blood Service adjusted surplus must not be bess than the cost of funding

Tha Waslpac Mew Zealand Limited unsecured loan becomes repayable on demand in the event the New Zealand Blood Sendce braaches any of the oblgations under the
ragative pladge undertaking. The New Zealand Blood Senice has complied with all nagative pledge undertakings and bomowing shligations duning the financial year. Curant
facilty amangements operate to 31 July 2017 with 2 renewal offer throwugh 1o 30 September 2018,

The liabilities of the New Zealand Blood Senice are not guaraniesd in any way by the Governmaent of New Zealand,

20 Equity 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Crown aquity
Taotal crown egquity 15,716,696 15,716,696
Accumulated comprehonsive revenue and expense
Ag at 1 July 23,100,530 21394174
Surplus for the year (2.344 B53) 4,706 356
Transfar to adversa Tractionation avent resane - 3,000,000y
Total accumulated comprehensive revenus and expenss 20,755 67T 23,100,530
Adverse lractionation event reserve
As at 1 July 3,000,000 Z
Additional funds recened - 3,000,000
Funds utilised - nat of recovaries - e
Total adverse fractionation event reserve 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total equity as a1 30 June 39,472,313 31,817,276

Thi adversa fractionation evert reserns was establishad in the financial year ending 30 June 2015 to mitigate those NZBS attributed financisl igks derming from the fractionated
product manufactunng contracl. The leved of the rasenve is required to be reviewsad annually with additions to the reserve balance of $3.0 million funded throwgh accumulated
comprehansie revanus and expanse. In the 2016 year the board slected not to increasa the resene.
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Reconciliation of net surplus I {deficit) to net cash from operating activities 30 June 2016 0 June 2015
Net surplus / (deficit) from the statement of comprehensive Income (2.344 B53) 4,706 356
Add [ (less) non.cash items:

Depraciation @nd amonisaton 3730350 3563523
Changes in premises reinstalemant prowsion &85 350 585 812
Aad / (less) items classified as investing or financing activities:

Interest received on investments -
Investiment other - .
[Gaing) / losses on dispogal of proparly. plant and equipmenl (13 833) B3 133
krpamant losses (note 14) #0311 -
Interast receved on Evestments - term deposits (A50.054) (334 508)
Add { (less) movements in working capital ems:

Trada and alher recamablos 243590 (41,714)
Inventories (6 688 T05) (3,300 ,453)
Trade and other payables 1,503 820 1,394 440
Employee benelt kabilities {49.2H) B33 407
Revabuation of demvaime financial mstrumants 213332 {7940
Net cash from operating activitles {368,313) 5,802,721
Craditors and accruals for capial expendiure are excluded from the trade and other payables increase or decrease.

Capital commitments and non-cancellable operating leases

Capital commitments 30 June 2016 3 June 2015
Leasehold improvemeants 1853 25976
Plant and equipment 32437 723277
Computer equipment 103 950 B17 819
Furnitura and fittings. - -
Miotor vehiclas 38339
Office equipmant . 1698
Intangible assets 3937 336 20032
Capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred for property, plant and equipment plus intangibles 4,345 582 1,427,131

Intangible assats include $3.9 million relating to the implemantaticn of the eTraceling blood bank software which goes live in April 2017, This includes beth the comracied price
for the purchase of the sofiware and a forecast of the expected contractor costs to be incwred in complating ihe projectimplamanting the softwara.

Operating leases as lessee

HNZBS leases property, plant and equipment in the nommal course of its operations. The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating

loases are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments

ol laber than one year

Later than cne year and nod later than fve years
LLater than fwe years

Total non-cancellable operating leases

30 June 2016 H June 2015
42059 4,735 007
16,307 525 17,711,768
71,026 356 B2 335,035
51,554,360 105 142010

The 30 June 2015 and 216 operalng lease cost compenent for premises include reral increases based on rental review dates per contracts and dependent on the [ease an

assumed market or CPI ncreass at compound rate,

The 30 June 2015 and 2016 nen-cancellable operaling leases include the commitmen to lease both bevel 1 and 2 of Dilworth House, 71 Great South Road, in 2018 for an initial
pericd of 10 years, The estimated cost of this lease commetment is $18.5 million over the 10 year pariod. NZBS movaed imlo the new Chrisichurch Blood Centre on 10 November
2014, NZBS has classifiad the lease of this new faclity at Lester Lane, Christchurch as being predomanately an oparating lease. The specialist fil-cat companent ralating to the
facility has been classified in the 2016 financial year as a finance lease (refer note 19). Under the |leasing arangement, the initial fixed term of the lease is 30 years, with two
further righte of renewal of 12 years each The agreed lease payment per annum is adjusted every 3 years in Ene with the greater of the Consumer Price Index (CPl) ora
mnimum increase of 2 5% at compound rate. Al the end of 15 years from the commencement of the loase, thera is a further marked rent rowiew undertaken,

The minimum annual increase of 2.5% compound has been included in the minimum operating leass payment expense recognisad in the surplus or deficit. On a straight-line

basis this has been determined to be 3682 975 per annum. Therefore, we expect in the first 15 years of the |ease the actual rent payable per anrum will be less than the straight-

lned amount of expense recegnised in profit and less, creating an accrued rent liability. However, by year 15 the actual amourt of rant payable per annum wil axceed the

straight-Enad amount chargad to proft and loss, effectialy maversing the accruad rent liakilidy cver the balance of the indial 30 year term. Any additional increass in the CPl which
exceads the minimum amount of 2.5% increase will be charged to proft or loss 38 contingend rent expensa in the penad incurred.

Tha reduction between the 2016 and 20015 year total non-cancellable operating leases is 3 combanation of leases being one year closer to ferm of expiry and the finance kease

reclassication of the Laster Lane specialist fit-oul componant.

HZES has net entered into any sublease amangements as at 30 June 206
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23 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities
HZBS is a participating employer i the Defined Banefit Plan Contribitors Schema (the Scheme’) which is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. If the other participating

employers ceased fo participate in the Scheme, NZBS could be responsible for the entire deficit of the schamea. Similary if a number of eamplay d to participate in the
schema, the employer could be responsible for an increased share of the defict.

A2 31 March 2015 the suplus was $20.3 million (11.4% of the fiabilifies). As at 31 March 2014, the Scheme had a past sensce surplus of $16.2 milion (B.0% of the labities)
This amourd is exclusive of employer superannuation cordribution tax. This surplus was calculated using a discount rafe equal fo the expected retum on the assets, but
otherwise the assumptions and methodology were consistent with the requirements of NZ 1AS 13 for 31 March 2014 and PBE IPSASIS for 31 March 2015,

Tha Actuary to the scheme recommended previously that the empleyer contnbutions were suspended with effect from 1 April 2011, In the katest rapart, the Actuary

recemmended employer contibutions remain suspendad.

Contingen! assets

Theara are no contingant assets as at 30 June 2016 2015 M),
24 Related party transactions and key management personnel
{3) Controlled entities
MNZBS is controlled by the Crown and it does not cortrel any other for-profit or public benel® entity,

(E) Key management personninel

The key management personnel, as defined by PBE IPSAS 20 Related Party Disclosures, of NZBS are the members of the Board, and the members of the senior management
group. The Beard consists of members appointed by the Crown; the chief execulve officer and the chief financial officer sttend meetings of the Board but are not members of the

Board.
The senier management group consists of NZBS's chief executive officer and the remaining 7 members of the Executive team.

The aggregate remuneration and the rumber of members determined en a full-time equivalant basis receiing remuneration are:

30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Board members
Femuneration $1EM §116,000
Fulktime equivalant members: 0.35 035
Leadership team
Remunaration §1,302 520 §1 367 513
Fulltime equivalent mambers B.00 800
Total Beard and leadership

Total key management personnel remuneration §2,019,30 §2,083,613

Total full time equivalent parsonnel 835 8.35
(¢} Related party trangactions
Capital charge
During the period the New Zealand Blood Sendce paid the Ministry of Health a capital charge of 53 362 500 (2015 $3.236 400). The amount outstanding at the end of the period
was nil (2015: Mil.
Equity inaction

During the period the New Zealand Blood Sandce did net receive any equity injection from the Minisiry of Health (2015: Kil),

{d) Other

Dunng the reporting penod, there were no loans advanced that are not widely svasdable (andfor not widely known] to persons cutside the key management personnal that were

advanced.

A close family member of @ key management persannel member is employed by NZBS. The terms and conditions of this amangament are no more favourable than NZSS wauld

have adopted if there was no relationship to key management personnel.

25 Board members' remuneration 30 June 2015 30 June 2015
Mr David Chamberlain Appointed 1 October 2003, appointed Chairman 15 August 2011 32,000 32,000
Mr David Wright Deputy Chawman appointed 15 August 2008, retired 14 June 2016 19,111 20,000
Mr lan Ward Appointed 19 August 2011, appointed Deputy Chagman 15 Juna 2016 16,178 16,000
Professor Peter Browet Appointed 1 October 2003, rediring 16 Seplember 2016 16,000 16,000
M=z Raewyn Idoine Appointed 1 October 2012, retired 14 June 2016 15,283 16,000
Mrs Victoria Kingi Appointed 26 February 2014 16,000 16,000
Dr Bart Baker Appointed 15 June 2016 m -
Cathryn Lancaster Appointed 15 June 2016 m
Fiona Pimm Appointed 15 Juna 2016 m -
Total Board members’ remuneration 16,111 116,000
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26 Employes remuneration range 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
No, Employees  No. Employees
$100,000 - 109,999 12 12
$110,000 - 119,999 7 7
$120,000 - 129999 B
$130,000 - 139,599 ]
$140,000 - 149 999
$150.000 - 159 599
$160,000 - 169,999
$180.000 - 183 399
$190,000 - 199 999
$200 000 - 209 999
$210,000 - 219999
$220,000 - 229999
$230,000 - 239999
$240,000 - 249,959
$260,000 - 259 999
$260,000 - 269 999
$280,000 - 289,959
$320,000 - 329,999
$330,000 - 739,999 1
$350,000 - 355 539 * .

Bl =a = b BJ

" I P

g o e k.

N

1
1
i m

* Chief Executive Officer - a new CEQ was appainted in April 2015, The remuneration range shown above for the June 2015 financial year reflects the departing CEO's
remunaration up to the date of resignation - méd Apnl 2015. The newly appointed CEQ's remunaration is not shown in ihae table for the June 2015 financial year dus fo
remuneration eamed being less then $100,000 from employment start date to 30 June 2015 .

Emgloyes remunaration includes the following slements; base salary, cash allowances, bonuses and incentive payments, non-monatary benefits, any Frings Benefit Tax paid on
any elemerd of the remuneration package and any termination, severance or end of contract payments.

27 Termination payments

Thare were no termination payments made to empboyees in 2016, During the year ended 30 June 2015 2 employess receved tormination payments tolaling 564,035

28 Events after the balance date

There ware no significant events after balance date.

29 Segmental reparting

The New Zealand Blood Service operates solely within New Zealand. This is considerad to be one geographical segment for financial reparting purposes.

The New Zealand Blood Service acthvilies are vertically integrated. These activities include collaction, processing, accreditation testing and supply of blood and they are
considared to be an integrated segment for reporting purposes,

30 Financial instrument categories
The accounting policies for financial instrumants have bean applied to the ne tems balow:

3 June X116 30 June 2015

FIMANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equralents (note B) 3NN 10,538 406
Trade and other receivables (note 9) 12,267 553 12511142
bwvastmant - tarm depesits [note 10) 15,000,000 B.000,000
Total loans and recelvables 24,206,864 11,109,548
Fair value through surplus or deficit

Demvatee fmancial mstrumants (note 12) - BE3EN
Total fair value through surplus or defich - 583,623

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Trade and other payables (note 15) - excluding GST payable 1o the Inland Revenue 12 B840 ET0 12 438 968
Bomowings (nota 13) 7 315355 4 218,396
Total financial liabilities measured at amonised cost 20,156,026 16,717 962

Fair value through surplus or deficit
Demvatre imancial nstrumants (note 12) 1,546 309
Total fair value through surplus ar defici 1,546,309
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31 Fair value hierarchy disclosures

Total Quoted Observable Significant non.
market price inputs observable inputs
30 June 2016
Financial assets
Demvatives - foeward foreign exchange contracts
Financial liabilities
Demvaties - fooward Toreign exchange contracls 1546 309 . 1 546 309

30 June 2015
Financial assets
Denvatives - forward foreign exchange contracts SE3 623 - 583623

Financial llabilities
Demvatives - fesward foreign exchange contracts

Thara wera no transfers betwean the diffarant lavels of the fair value kerarchy.
32 Financial instruments risks
Tha New Zealand Blood Senice is party o financial instruments a5 part of its everyday operations. These include instruments such as bank balances, imvestmants in the form of

term deposits, accounts racewabla, trade craditors and loans.

The entity has a seres of pelicies providing risk managernent for interast rates and the concentration of cradit. The entity is sk averse and seeks to minimise sxposure from its
freasury actiities. NIBS policies do not allow any transactions which are speculative in nature to be enfered mnto.

Interest rate risk

Fair valwa mterast rate nsk

Fair value interest risk is the risk that the valus of a financial instrument will fluctuate due fo changes in market interast rates. Borrowings and investments issued at fived rates
of imerest create exposure to fair value interest rate risk. NZBS manages ils interes! rate risk through the Treasury Management Committes thal meets monthly and considers
interest rate sk as parl of As agenda.

Cash flow intares! rate nsk

It is astimated that a general increase or decrease in inferest rafes on bormowings of 1% would increase of decrease the NZBS surplus / deficit by approximately §73,150 at 30
Juna 2016 [2015: 542,190),

Thera are no intarest rale options or interest rate swap agreements in place as at 30 June 2016 015: Mil).

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call which are at floating rates and short term deposits at fixed rates totalling $3.314 511 (2016 $10,593 656). A movement in
interest rates of plus or minus 1% has an effect on interest income of $39,150 M5 $105540)

Currency risk

Trade payables include AUDSE.53 milion of Australian dollar denominated payables (2015 AUDS2.TT million) in relation to imventory purchases. Cumency risk has been
maligated on ihese payables as they are covered by Fixed Forward Foreign Exchange selling contracts,

Tha NZD equivabent of unhadged amounts owing in foresgn currency at balance dala is $138 343 (2015 §203 674). The NZD equwvalent of unhedged amounts owing to NZBS in
foresgn cumency at balance date is $124,371 2015 nil).

Ferward foreign exchange contracts 30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Total farward foreign exchange ontracts [stated in NZDY 38,702,579 23453412
The foreign currency principal ameunts were AUDS35 168 411 2015: AUDEM 185 B35).

The fair values of forward exchange cortracls have been determined using a discounted cash fMlows valuation technigue based on quoted market prices. The inputs into the
valuation model are from independantly sowrced market parameters such as cummency rates. Most market parameters are implied from forward foseign exchange contract prices.
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Financial assets

There were no dervative financial assets held for trading at 30 Juna 2016, At 30 June 2015 dervative financial assets consisted of forwand foreign exchange contracts with a fair
value totalling $583 623 At 30 June 2015, a movemant in foreign exchange rates of plus 10% has an adverss impact of §2 19 milkon, and minus 10% has a favourabls impact of

§2 67 million, based on a denvative vaduation model using hypothatical forward rates.

Financial liabilities

At 30 June 2M6 dervative financial kabiities consisted of forward foreign exchange contracts wath a fair value 1otalling $1 545 309 At 30 June 2016, a movement in forsign
sxchanga rates of plus 10% has an adverse impact of 53.38 milkon, and minus 10% has a favourable smpact of $4.13 million, based on a demvaltmwe vakuation model using

hypothatical forward rates There were no dervative financial kabilittes hald for trading at 30 June 2015 .

Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date are:

Cash in hand

Call depesits and short tarm daposis
Racaivables

Investments - tarm deposis
Darwative fnancial mstruments.
Total credit risk

Credit quality of financial assets

COUNTERPARTIES WITH CREDIT RATINGS
Total cash at bank and term deposits

M.

Derivative financial intrument assels

AA-

COUNTERPARTIES WITHOUT CREDIT RATINGS
Debtors and other receivables

Exigling courterparty with no defaults in the past
Exigling courterparty with defaults in the past
Total debtors and other receivables
Concentration of credit risk

30 June 216 30 June 2015
4 800 4750
3S4EN 10,593 556
10,953 0539 11213171
B.000.000 B.000 000

- 583 623

22 872,370 30401200
3 June 2016 30 Jume 2015
1134511 18 593 G5
583 623

10,553,059 11.213.1M
10,953,059 11,219,171

Concentrations of credit risk from accounts recaivable are Emated dus to the majorty of NZBS's revenue being from the 20 District Health Boards (DHBs). The DHBs make up
approximately 97% (2015: 38%) of the total racevables outstanding at balance date. Colectively the DHBs are assessed to ba bow risk, high qualty entilies due to their nature,
as govemment organisations responsible for providing the public health senvice to New Zealand

Liquidity risk

The maximum amount available fo New Zealand Blood Senvice under existing banking arrangements is 58,300,000 (2015: $8 300,000} on term facilities of which $3.300 000 was
drawn down 3t balance date (2015 §3,300, 000}, A negative pledge obligation exits with this facility — refer note 13.

30 June 2016

Trade and other payables {note 15) - excludng GST
Bomowings - finance lease [note 13)
Bomowings - term credit facilty (note 13)

30 June 2015

Trade and cther payables {note 15) - excludng GST
Bomowings - finance leasa [note 13)
Borowings - term credit facilty (note 13)

Liability Contractual | Lessthan 1
camying amount]  cash flows yiar 12 years 2.5 yoars More than 5 years
12 B40 670 12 B40 G700 12 840 670 - - -
415,355 BBST B 553664 1,034,713 133636 5343,754
3,300,000 3438130 128 857 3,309,333 - -
Liability Contractual | Less than 1
camying amount]  cash Nows year 12 years 25 years More than 5 years
12 458 366 12436966 | 12498566 - . .
318,396 1202533 MEN 263,115 A B2 263,115
3,300,000 3450771 133,028 331,743 - -
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Contractual maturity analysis of derivative financial instruments

Liability Batween &
carmying Assel canmying Contractual Less than 6 | months and 1
30 June 2016 amaunt amount cash flows manihs yoar 12 yoars 2.5 yoars
Forward Toraign exchange comlracts
outflow - 38,702 573 4588 614 5609072 2T 434 502 10700
inflesw 1 546,309 37 156 270 4, 339507 5267 122 26,430,020 1,059,221
Liability Between &
carrying Assel carrying Contractual Less than 6 | months and 1
30 June 2015 amaunt amount cash flows monihs year 12 years 245 years
Fosward Toreign exchange comracts
outflow 583623 23 453 411 5433 247 11,133 53% B B36 538
inflow - 24 007 034 5612640 342123 T.oazam

33 Capital management

Thie Mew Zealand Blood Serdce's capital is its equity comprising crown equity, accurmulated funds and the adverse fractionation event resenve. Equity is represented by net
asgels.

The Mew Zealand Blood Servce is subject to the financial managameant and accountabiity provisions of the Crown Entities Act 2004 which imposss restrictions in relation to
bomowings, acquisition of secunties, issuing of guarantess and indamnities and the use of dervaties.

The Mew Zsaland Blood Serice manages s equity by managing revenues, expanses. assets, liabilities, mvestmants and gensral financial dealings to ensure it effectiely

achieves its objectives and purpose, whilst bahaving in & financially responsibla manners in accordance with the financial managemant obligations impesed by the Crown Entities
Act 2004

34 Explanation of major variances against budget

Tha reported deficit of $2.3 million was influenced by the following factors when compared to the budgeted deficit of -§15.0 thousand:

1) Gross revanues of $115.6 millicn were +53.3 milion ahead of budget mainly due 1o stronger demand for fractionated products (+53.4 million above budget) from DHBS,

2) The cest of consumables and changes in immentory at $41.7 malon was -52.4 million unfavourable to budget, These unfavourable adjustments arose primarily from hagher
fractionated product demand, in particular immuncglebulin (PVig) products (+5.96% above budged) and higher than budgeted product expiry (mainly red colls, platelts and
fractionated products),

3) Mark 1o marke! revaluation movement of denvative financial instruments was -52.1 milkon unlavourable overall driving mainly from the strengthening RZDVALD cross rate in the
month of June 2016, Fereign exchange contracts on hand at year end were purchased at an average NZDVALID rate of 0.3092 which compares to the closing mark to market
average rate of NZDVALRD 0.3470.

A) Tha balance of other variances to budget at an wnfavourable -§1.1 million was represanted by 3 combination of;

[{) Higher employes benefit expanses -50.2 million due 1o the higher number of stafl employed on sverage during the year compared to budget as 3 resull of higher
Tractionaled product demand.

(®) Lower depreciation and amorisation costs +50.2 million.

(m) Finance charges -80.5 million drving from the reclassification of three operating leases to finance leases (refer note B).

(w) Higher Caher expanses -B0UE millicn overall being @ combination of @ higher capital charge (-80.3 mélion), the impairmant loss (-30.4 million] relating lo the proporien of
functionality that will bacome redundant within the existing blood managemant system ¢Progesa when the new eTraceline blood bank software goes live in Aprd 2017 (refer note
14), highar distribution costs ralating 1o higher coBaction volumes and fracticnated product demand (-80.2 malicn), higher foreign exchangs losses 302 million), higher employes
axpensas partly due 1o higher health and safety compliance expenditure and recruitment related costs (-80.3 million) offsel by lower expendilure on occupancy expanses (+50.2
million) dus to the reclassification from operating lease 1o finance lease of the specialist fit-out componant of the Lester Lane, Chastchurch facilty, lower marketing expenditure
[+80.3 millicn) plus lower equipment operating leases costs (+50.3 million) dus to reclassifying two operating leases in prior years, to finance l¢ases in the 2016 financial year.

Note when companng the Financial Staterments to the Siatement of Serdce Pedformance, the budget numbers shown in the Statement of Senice Performance ane recorded at
an aggragated level whereas budget figures shown in the financial statements are broken out at a maore detaded level,

Tha ovarall cash flow movemant for 2005/16 was a decrease in cash of -36.7 million resulting in a closing cash position at 30 June 2015 of $3.9 millicn. This figure was §1.4
million favourable to budget dua primarily o a favourable +52.8 million highar opening position offsed by -51.4 unfavourable activity movemants as detaded balow.
(a) Cash from Oparating Activities a1 -81.0 million was -80U6 million unfavourable to budget. Kay influencing factors ware:

(¥ Increase in receipts (+53.7 million) dieng from higher demand particularly fractionated product.

() Higher lavals of supplier paymants {52 & million) reflacting the increased lavels of manufactunng actvily and purchasaes relating to fractionated products.

(=) Paymeant of the 201415 Price Rebate to DHBs which was -§1. 1mallion higher than originally allowad for.

[w) Cther payments in total baing unfavourable to budged by -80.6 milion, tha magor contributor being interest paid, in part due fo the reclassification of 3 operating leases to
finance leases in tha 2016 year (refar note B)
[t} Cashilows from lmesting Actitios at -$5 3 millicn was -$0. & million unfavourable to budget mainly duwe to timing on capital expenditure relating to the eTraceline blood bank
projoct.
[¢) Cashélows from Financing Activities at -$0.4 million was wnfavourable fo budgel by -$0.3 million driven by the reclassfication of three leases recorded as operating leases in
prios financial years Lo finance leases (reler note 13).
The equity posstion at 30 June 2016 tetalled 539 4 millicn (budget $38 5 million) representing an equily ratio of 84.4% (budget 30.4%) and a debl ratio of 15.6% (budget 9.6%),
The adverse vafiance 1o budgel was diven by the reclassilfication i the year under review of thiee leases Lo finance leases thal historically had been recorded as operating
leages.
Tangible assets totalled $65.6 million (budget $55.7 million) compared to last year's $63 Imillion.
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L Private Bag 92-071
Te Ratonga Tote O Actearca Auckland Mail Centre

ALCKLAND 1142

Mew Zealand

Telephone: 09 523 5752
Facsimile: 09 523 5754

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

1)  The Board and Management of the New Zealand Blood Service accept
responsibility for the preparation of the annual Financial Statements and annual
Statement of Performance and the judgements used in them.

2) The Board and Management of the New Zealand Blood Service accept the
responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of intermal control
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of
financial and non financial reporting.

3)  In the opinion of the Board and Management of the New Zealand Blood Service,
the annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 fairly reflect the
financial position and operations of the New Zealand Blood Service.

() C(__ Qf Aard

David Chamberlain lan Ward

Board Chairman Deputy Board Chairman
26 August 2016 26 August 2016
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AUDIT NEW ZEALAND

Mana Arotake Aotearoa

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the readers of
New Zealand Blood Service’s financial statements and statement of
performance for the year ended 30 June 2016

The Auditor-General is the auditor of New Zealand Blood Service. The Auditor-General has
appointed me, Athol Graham, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry
out the audit of the financial statements and the statement of performance of the New Zealand
Blood Service on her behalf.

Opinion on the financial statements and the statement of performance

We have audited:

. the financial statements of the New Zealand Blood Service on pages 30 to 54, that
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 20146, the statement of
comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements
that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

. the statement of performance of the New Zealand Blood Service on pages 55 to 60.

In our opinion:

" the financial statements of the New Zealand Blood Service:
o present fairly, in all material respects:
. its financial position as at 30 June 2016; and
. its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended;
and
o comply with generally accepted accounting practice in Mew Zealand and
have been prepared in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Reporting
Standards.
. the statement of performance:
o presents fairly, in all material respects, the Mew Zealand Blood Service's

performance for the year ended 30 June 20146, including:
. for the class of reportable output:
% its standards of performance achieved as compared with

forecasts included in the statement of performance
expectations for the financial year;




NEW ZEALAND BLOOD SERVICE 63
[ -

. its actual revenue and output expenses as compared with
the forecasts included in the statement of performance
expectations for the financial year; and

o complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.

Qur audit was completed on 26 August 201 6. This is the date at which our opinion is
expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the
Board and our responsibilities, and explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (Mew Zealand). Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the statement of
performance are free from material misstatement.

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, in our
judgement, are likely to influence readers’ overall understanding of the financial statements
and the statement of performance. If we had found material misstatements that were not
corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements and the statement of performance. The procedures
selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements and the statement of performance, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the preparation of the
New Zealand Blood Service's financial statements and statement of performance in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Zealand Blood Service's internal control.

An audit also involves evaluating:

. the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been
consistently applied;

. the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by
the Board;
. the appropriateness of the reported statement of performance within the New

Zealand Blood Service's framework for reporting performance;

. the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements and the statement of
performance; and

. the overall presentation of the financial statements and the statement of performance.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the
financial statements and the statement of performance. Also, we did not evaluate the security
and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements and the statement of
performance.
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We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for preparing financial statements and statement of performance
that:

. comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;

. present fairly the New Zealand Blood Service's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows; and

. present fairly the New Zealand Blood Service's performance.
The Board's responsibilities arise from the Crown Entities Act 2004,

The Board is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements and statement of performance that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board is also responsible for the publication
of the financial statements and the statement of performance, whether in printed or electronic
form.

Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and the
statement of performance and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. Our
responsibility arises from the Public Audit Act 2001.

Independence

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the
Auditor-General, which incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting
Board.

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the New Zealand Blood
Service.

V.

Athol Graham

Audit Mew Zealand

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Auckland, New Zealand
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NZBS BOARD MEMBERS

Mr David Chamberlain (Board Chairman)
BEc, FNZSA, FIAA, CMinstD

Mr lan Ward (Deputy Board Chairman)
BSc, MCom

Professor Peter Browett
BMedSc, MBChB, FRACP, FRCPA

Mrs Victoria Kingi

LIb (Hons)

Nga Potiki a Tamapahore

Te Arawa, Ngati Porou, Ngai Tahu

Dr Bart Baker
Mb ChB (distinction), FRACP, FRCPA

Cathryn Lancaster
BCom, ACMA

Fiona Pimm

NZBS EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Chief Executive Officer
Sam Cliffe
BSc (Hons)

Chief Financial Officer
John Harrison
BCom, CA

National Medical Director
Dr Peter Flanagan
BMedSci, BM, BS, FRCP, FRCPath, FRCPA

National Manager Human Resources

Sue Jensen
RGON, GDipBus (ER)

National Manager Operations
Christine Van Tilburg
NDMLS, RMLS
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National Manager Technical Services
Ray Scott
NZCS, COPMLT, RMLS

National Manager Quality and Regulatory Systems

Meredith Smith
BAppSc, GradDipQualMgt

National Manager Donor Services
Olive Utiera

RGON

Ngapuhi, Taranaki

NATIONAL OFFICE

11 Great South Road, Epsom, Auckland

Tel: +64 (0) 9 523 5744

Fax: +64 (0) 9 523 5754

Website: www.nzblood.co.nz

Facebook Page: New Zealand Blood Service

AUDITOR

Audit New Zealand

(on behalf of the Auditor General)
Level 6, 280 Queen Street
Auckland

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Westpac New Zealand Limited
Level 6, 16 Takutai Square
Auckland

SOLICITORS

Buddle Findlay
Auckland and Wellington
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